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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Management of Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations (the “Bank™) which
comprise the balance shaet as at 31 December 2022 and profit and loss account, statements of changes in
equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting poiicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Bank gives a true and fair view of the balance
sheet of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with international Financia! Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note 2.1.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (18As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the international Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (JESBA Code) and
Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibiliies in accordance with the IESBA Code
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh ({CAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit
evidance we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
and Internal Controls _

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Bank that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs as explained in note 2.1, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1991 and the Bangladesh Bank
Regulations require the management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management
functions of the Bank. The management is also requirad to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of
anti-fraud internal controis and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeties.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's abllity to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern
pasis of accounting unless managemant either intends to fiquidate the Bank or to cease operatiofs, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those chargad with governance are responsihle for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibliiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due {o fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasohable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reascnably be expscted to influence the econotmic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statementis.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout he audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 10 those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an gpinion on the
effactiveness of the Bank's internal controi.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continué as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report {0
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future avents or conditions may cause the Bark to cease to confinue as a going

concern.

e FEvaluate the overail presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair preseniation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Bank to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiancies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremernts

in accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Bank Company Act, 1891 and the rules and regulations
issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report that:

(i)

(ii}

(i)

(iv)

v)

{vi}

{vii)

{viii)
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we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed oh the basis stated under the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section In forming the above opinion
on the financial statements of the Bank and considering the reports of the Management to Bangladesh
Bank on anti-fraud internal controls and instances of fraud and forgeries as stated under the
managament's responsibility for the financial statements and internal control:

(a) internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Bank as disclosed in the
financial statements appeared to be materially adequate;

(o) nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery of irregularity or
administrative error and exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of the Bank
and its related entities.

in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Bank 50 far as it
appeared from our axamination of those books;

the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated i the financial statements;

the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with the annexed nofes dealt
with by the report ara in agreement with the pooks of account and returns;

the expenditures incurred by the Bank were for the purpose of the Bank's businass for the year,
the financial statements of the pank have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules, regutations
and accounting standards as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank;

adequate provisions have been made for loans and advance and other assets which are in our opinion,
doubtful of recovery,

the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory,

we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 820 person hours;
Capital {0 Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR} as required by Bangladesh Bank has been maintained
adeguately during the year, and

In our opinion proper information as required by the regulatory requirement have been kept by the
Bank sc far as it appeared from our examination of those information regarding Letter of Cradit (LC)
and/or Post Import Financing (PIF).
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Bank Aifalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2022

. 2022 2021
Particulars Notes Taka Taka
Property and asseis
Cash 4 2,259,450,663 1,386,111,289
Cash in hand (inciuding foreign CUITENCY) 265,320,156 219,963,026
Bajance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) 1,994,130,507 1,166,148,963
{Including foreign cutrency) :
Balance with other banks and financial institutions 5 869,029,208 3,618,025,526
In Bangladesh 685,788,984 3,461,768,506
Outside Bangladesh 183,240,224 156,257,020
Money at call on short notice 5h 2,430,000,000 -
investments 6 6,279,804,026 6,872,174,301
Government 6,279,804,026 6,872,174,301
Others - -
Loans and advances 7 17,396,404,265 12,629,103,254
l.oans, cash credit, overdrafts efc. 17,380,352,770 12,625,451,010
Bills purchased and discounted 6,051,495 3,652,244
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures 8 126,566,687 154,004,583
Other assets 9 1,730,002,287 1,799,142,749
Non-banking assets “ -
Total property and assefs 31,091,257,136 26,458,562,402
Liabilitles and capital
Liabilities
.Borll'ow.mgs from other hanks, financial 10 1,648,041,717 2,477,748,075
institutions and agents
Deposits and other accounts 11 20,827,944 847 45,642,296,091
Current accounts and other accounts 2,020,283,680 1,877,300,739
Bills payable 620,554,364 500,482,685
Savings bank deposits 7.854,260,422 7,321,848,235
Fixed deposits 10,332,846,381 5,933,664,432
Other deposits - -
Other liabilities 12 2,852,016,872 2,398,2564,029
Total liabilities 25,228,003,436 20,618,298,198
Capital and shareholders’ equity
Paid up capital (Fund from head office) 13 4,528,498,538 4,454,035,286
Revaiuaticn reserve 14 1,853,030 87,767,757
Surplus in Profit and Loss Account 15 1,332,802,132 1,398,461,164
Total shareholders' equity 5,863,253,700 5,940,264,207

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 31,091,257,136 26,458 562,402

The annexed notes 1 fo 38 form an integral part of thase ﬁnan%xﬁtements.

Eimap Sarfraz
Country Operations Head

Al Islam

Abu Noyem Md. Khasru
Country Head

Head of Financa

As per our report of same date.

Auditor

i Mahadi Hasan, Farinet
Enroiment Humber: 1004
mabman Rahman Hug
Crartered Accourianis

kPG in Bangladesh
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Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations

Ofi-balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Particutars Notes Taka Taka
Contingent fiabilities
Acceptances & endorsements 103,175,762 1,214,412,710
tetters of guarantees 16 423,378,871 450,949,743
lsrevocable letters of credit 17 237,192,170 1,186,822,313
Bills for collection 102,836,375 62,392,511
Other contingent liabilities (Bangladesh Sanchaypatra) 316,450,000 316,450,000
Total 1,183,033,178 3,231,027,277
Other commitments

Documentary credits and short ferm trade-related transactions
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed

Undrawn note issuance and revolving undenwriting facilities

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments

Total

Total Off-balance sheet ltems Including contingent liabilities

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

. 2022 2021
Particuiars Nofes Taka Taka
interest income 19 1,174,034,178 769,408,151
Interest paid/profit shared on deposits and borrowings etc. 20 {674,262,023) (338,796,077)
Net interest income 499,772,156 430,612,074
Investment income 21 365,452,828 476,104,005
Commission, exchange and brokerage 22 206,951,834 124,902,808
QOther operating income 23 22,502,433 15,496,235
Total operating income 1,094,769,250 1,047,115,122
Salaries and allowances 24 351,438,882 339,072,600
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 25 56,786,677 47,640,025
Legai expenses 26 (653,390) 2,144,525
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 27 17,750,247 16,514,919
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 28 5,927,256 5,111,752
Country Head's salary and fees 29 24,239,589 24,060,823
Auditors' feas 767,000 675,625
Depreciation and repair of the Bank's assets 30 123,682,853 124,694,642
Cther expenses 31 44,522 606 41,660,964
Total operating expenses 624,461,730 801,575,875
Profit before provisions 470,307,520 445,539,247
Provision for loans and advances/investments 32 110,085,517 14,357,061
General provision 48,808,330 16,783,139
Spacific provision 61,277,187 (2,426,078}
Provision for off-balance sheet items released (37,530,000) (9,500,000)
Provision for diminution in value of investments - -
Other provisions - -
Total provision 72,555,617 4,857,061
Total profit/{loss) before taxes 397,752,003 440,682,186
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 268,000,000 137,000,000
Deferred tax expense/(incoma) (8,300,575 (22,228,179)
Total provigion for taxation 33 259,699 425 114,771,821
138,052,578 325,910,365

Net profit after taxation

Appropriations:
Transferred to Start-Up Fund
Retained Surplus Carried Forward

[ {1,380,526)] |

[3,259,104) |

136,672,052

322,651,261

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial sta!/eﬁents.
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Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Taka Taka
A. Cash flows from operating activities
1,211,217,683 789,454,268

Interest receipts in cash

Interest payment

Dividend receipts

Fees and commission receipts in cash
Recoveries on loans previously writien off
Cash payments to employees

Cash payments to suppliers

fncome tax paid

Receipts from other operating activities
Payment for other operating activities
Operating cash flow before changes in operating asse

ts and tiabilities (i)

Increaseldecrease in operating assets and liahilities

Loans and advances to customers

Qther assets

Deposits from other hanksfborrowings

Deposits from customers

QOther liabitities

Cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities (i)
Net cash flows from operating activities (i+ii) (a)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from salefredemption of securities
Payments for purchase of securilies
Purchase of property, piant & equipment
Sale of property, plant & equipment
Net cash from/{used) in investing activities {b)

C. Cash fiows from financing activities

Profit remitted to head office
Net cash used in financing activities ()

Net increaseldecrease in cash (a+b+c)

Effect of exchange raie changes on cash and the aqui
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand (including foreign currency)

Call and term horrowing

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents bank{s)
(including foreign currency}

Balance with other banks and financial institutions
Money at call on short notice

Treasury bills

Prize Bond

valent

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(575,549,752)

(370,357,006)

25,295,903 29,470,907
(351,105,655) (355,320,127)
(67,731,904) (68,640,872)
(186,624,175) (125,959,693)
569,701,192 537,032,141
(86,061,045) (60,908,538)
539,142,247 424,774,080

(@,767,301,017)

(1,567,598 888)

29,449,828 174,649,967
101,302,647 (293,891,533)
5,084,346,109 (465,019,436)
109,112,515 1,439,038
556,910,088 (2.150,420,852)
1,096,052,335 (1,725,649,772)
1,473,149,813 257,832,331
(80,271,299) (137,011,366)
3,765,235 439,043
1,396,643,749 121,260,008

(202,331,084)] |

(296,511,254)|

(202,331,084)

(296,511,254)

2,290,365,000

74,483,252
2,526,548,440

(1,900,901,0118)

4,247,261
4,423,202,197

4,891,376,692

265,320,156
(1,548,041,717)
1,994,130,507

2,526,548,440

219,963,026
(2,477,748,075)
1,166,148,963

869,029,208 3,618,025,528
2,430,000,000 -
880,842,538 -
96,000 159,000

4,891,376,692

2,526,548,440




Bank Alfatah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Fund deposited Revaluation
with Surplus in profit .
Particulars Bangladesh g?in!(loss) on | 14 loss account Total equity
investment

Bank

Taka Taka Taka Taka
Balance as at 1 January 2021 4,449,768,025 52,635,225 1,372,321,157 5,874,744,407
Surplusfdedicit on account of revaluation of investments - 35,132,532 - 35,132,532
Currency lranslation differance 4,247,261 - - 4,247 261
Net proiit for the period - 325,910,365 325,910,365
Transferred fo Start-Up Fund - - (3,259,104) {3,259,104)
Profit transferred to Head Office - - {296,511,254) (296,511,254
Balance as at 31 December 2021 4,454,035,286 87,767,757 1,398,461,164 5,040,264,207
For the yeat ended 31 December 2022

Fund de;posﬁed Revaluation R .
’ with Surplus in profit
Particulars reserve on Total equity
Bangtadesh "' | and less account
Govt, securities

Bank

Taka Taka Taka Taka
Balance as at 1 January 2022 4,454,035,286 87,767,757 1,398,461,164 5,940,264,207
Surplus/deficit on account of revaluation of investments - (85,814,727) - (85,814,727)

) Currency {ranslation difference 74,463,252 - - 74,463,252

Net profit for the pericd - - 138,052,578 138,052,678
Transferred to Start-Up Fund - - (1,380,526) (1,380,526)
Profit iransferred to Head Office - - (202,331,084) (202,331,084)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 4,528,498,538 1,953,030 1,332,802,132 | §5,863,283,700

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operatlons

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1

1.1

1.2

2.1

Reporting entity

Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations {the “Banik") are branches of Bank Alfatah Limited {the parent company)
incorporated in Pakistan. The gank is domiciled in Bangladesh. The address of the Bank's country office is 168

Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212.

The Bank started its operation in Bangtadesh on 16 May 2005 by acquiring Shamil Bank of Bahrain's Dhaka Branch
Operations as & branch of the parent company. The Bank has 7 branches as on 31 December 2022, Except 1 Islamic
Banking Branch, the rest of the branches run on canventional commerclal Banking business basis.

Principal activities and nature of operations of the Bank

The Bank primarily is involved in providing all kinds of commercial banking services to the customers. The Bank offers
sarvices for all commerclal Banking needs of the custamers, which includes deposit Banking, loans and advances,

export import financing, ete.

Isiamic Banking

The Bank has one islamic banking branch {Matijheel branch) that operates under Shari'ah Principles. The financiat
position and the financial performance are disclosed in Annexure VI The conventional panking financial and the
financial performance includes the |slamic banking operations.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Banlk are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reparling Standards
(IFRSs) and the requirements of the Rank Company Act, 1991 (as amended up to date), the rules and regulations
issued by Bangladesh Bank. In case any requirement of the Bank Company Act, 1991, and provisions and circuiars
issted by Bangiadesh Bank differ with those of IFRS, the requirements of the gank Company Act, 1991, and
provisions and circutars issued by Bangladesh Bank shall prevail.

Statement of compHance and basis of preparation

The Financial Reporting Act, 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 2015. Under the FRA, the Financiat Reporting Council (FRG)
was formed in 2017 and has adopted International Accounting Standards (|ASs) and internationat Financlal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as the applicable Financial Reporting Standards for public interest entities such as banks with effect
from 2 Novemnber 2020.

The financiat statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the IFRSs adopted by FRC and in
addition to this, the Bank also complied with the requirements of the following faws and regulations from various

Government bodies:

i) The Bank Company Act, 1991, and amendment thereon;

iy Circujars, Rules and Regulations Issued by Bangladesh Bank (BB) fime to time;

iy  The Income Tax Ordinance, 19884, and amendments thereon;

i)  The Value Added Tax Act, 2012, The Valug Added Tax Rules, 2016 and amendments thereon,

v)  Financial Reporting Act, 2015.

In case any requirement of the Bank Company Act, 1991, and provisions and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank
(BB) differ with those of IFRSs, the requirements of the Bank Cornpany Acl, 1991, and provisions and circulars issued
by BB shall prevail. Material departures from the requiremants of IFRS are as follows:

i) Investment in aguity instruments

IERS: As per requirements of IFRS 9 Classification and measurement of investment in equity instruments depend on
how these are managed (the entity's husiness medel) and their coniractuai cash flow characteristics. Based an these
factors, it would ganerally fall either under ‘at fair value through profit and loss account’ or under ‘at fair value through
oiher comprehensive income’ where any change in the fair value (measured in accardance with IFRS 13} at the year-
end is taken to the profit and loss account or other comprehensive income, respectively.




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2
2.1

Basis of preparation of financlal statements {Continued)
Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (Continued)
i) Investment in equity instruments (Continued)

Bangtadesh Bank: As per Banking Regulation and Policy Department (BRPD) circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003,
investments in quoted sharas and unguoted shares are revalued at the year-end at market price and as per the book
value of the Jast audited balance sheet, respectively. Provisions should be made for any loss arising from diminution in
vaiue of investments; otherwise investments are recognised at cost.

iiy Subsequent measurement of government securities

IERS: Government securities refer primarily 1o various debt instruments which include both bonds and bills. As per
requirements of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, bonds can be categorised as "Amortised Cast (AC)", or "Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)", or "Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCH". Bonds desighated as
Amortised Cost are measured at amortised cost methad, and interest income is recognisad through profit and loss
account, Any changes in fair value of bonds designated as FVTPL is recognised in the profit and loss account. Any
changes in fair value of bonds designated as FVOCI is recognised in other reserves, as a part of equity.

As per requirements of IFRS 9, bills can be categorised either as "Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPLY" of "Fair
yaiue through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)". Any change in fair value of bills is recognised in the profit and
loss account or other reserves as a part of equity, respectively.

Bangladesh Bank: As per DOS direular ne. 05, dated 26 May 2008, and subsequent clarification in DOS circular no.
05, dated 28 January 2009, Government secugities/vills are classified into Held for Trading (HFT) and Held to Matusity
{(HTM). HFT securities are revalued on the basis of mark-to-market and at year-end, any gains on revajuation of
securifies whlch have not matured as at the balance sheet date are recognised in other reserves as a part of equily.
Any losses on revaluation of securities which have not matured as at the baiance sheel date are charged in the profit
and loss account. Interest on HFT secusities, including amoriisation of discount, are recognised in the profit and loss
account. HTM securities which have not matured as at the balance sheel date are amortised at year-end, and galns or
losses on amortisation are recognised In other resarves as part of equity.

iif) Provision on loans and advances

IFRS: As per IFRS 9 Financlal nstruments, an entity shall recognise an impairment allowance on leans and advances
based on expected credit losses. At each reporting date, an entity shall measure impairment allowance for loans and
advances at an amount equal Lo the fifetime expected credit losses, if the credit tisk on these foans and advances has
increased significanily since initial recognition, whether assessed on an individual or collective basis, considering all
reasonable information (including that which is forward-locking). For those loans and advances for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, at each reporting date, an entity shall measure the impairment
allowance at an amount equal te 12 month expected credit losses that may resuit from default avents on such loans
and advances that are possible within 12 manths after the reporting date.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 7, dated 21 June 2018, BRPD circular ho 13, dated 18 October 2018,
BRPD circular no. 15, dated 27 September 2017, BRPD circular no. 18, dated 18 November 2014, BRPD circufar no.
14, dated 23 Sepiember 2012, BRPD circular no. 5, dated 28 May 2013, BRPD ircular no. 1, dated 20 February 2018
and BRPD circular no. 3, dated 21 Aprit 2019, a general provision at 0.25% to 5% under different categories of
unclassified loans (Standard and SMA loans) has to be maintained regardless of objective avidence of impairment.
Also, provision for different categories of classified loans {sub-standard, doubtful and bad and loss loans) has to be
provided at 20%, 50% and 100%, respectively, for toans and advances depending on time past due. Again, as per
BRED ciroular no. 14, dated 23 September 2042 and BRPD circular no. 7, dated 21 June 2018, a general provision at
1% is required to be provided for all off-balance sheet exposures except on ‘bills for collection® and 'guarantees’ where
the counter guarantees have been issued by Multilateral Davelopment Bank {MDB)/internationat pank having BB rating
grade '1' equivalent oullined in the Guidefines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital
Framework for banks, in fine with Basel-). Such provision policies are not specifically in fing with those prescribed by
iFRS 9.

iv) Other comprehensive income

IFRS: As per {AS 1 Prazentation of Financlal Statements, other comprehensive income is a component of financial
slatements or the elements of other comprehensive income are 10 be included in single comprehensive income

statements.

Bangladesh Bank: Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial staternents which will strictly be followed by all
banks. The tempiates of financial statements lssued by Bangladesh Bank do not include Other Comprehensive Income
nor are the elements of Other Comprehensive Income allowed 1o be included in a single Other Comprehensive Income
{OCH) statement. As such, the Bank dogs not prepare Other Comprehensive Income statement. However, elemants of
OCI, if any, are shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Nofes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Basis of preparation of financial statements {Confinued)
Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {Continued)

v) Financial instrumenis ~ presentation and disclosure

In several cases, Bangladesh Bank guideline categories recognise, measure and present financial instruments
differently from those prascribed in IFRS O Financial Instruments. Hence, some disclosure and preseniation
requirements of FRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures and 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation cannot be
made in the financial statements.

vi}) Repo and reverse repo transactions

tFRS: As per [FRS 9, when an entity sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase
the asset (or a similar assef) ai a fixed price on a future date (repo), the arrangement is treated as a joan, and the

underiying asset conlinues {o be recognised at amortised cost in the entity’s financiatl statements. The difference
balween seling price and repurchase price will be freated as interest expense. The same rule applies to the opposite
side of the transaction {reverse repo).

Bangladesh Bank: As per DOS circular letter no. 8, dated 15 July 2010, and subsequent clariflcation in DOS circular
no. 3, dated 30 January 2012 and DOS circular no. 2, dated 23 January 2013, when a bank sells a financial asset and
simultaneously enters inte an agreement to repurchase the asset (or a simifar assel) at a fixed piice on a future date
{repo or stock lending), the arrangement is accounied for as a normal sales transaction, and the financial assets are de-
recognised in the selier's book and recognised in the buyer's book.

However, as per DMD circular lefter no. 7, dated 29 July 2012, non-primary dealer banks are eligible to participate in
the Assured Liquidity Support (ALS) programme, whereby such banks may anter collateralised repo arrangements with
Bangladesh Bank. Here, the seling bank accaunts for the arrangement as a foan, thereby continuing to recognise the

asset.
vii) Financiat guarantees

IERS: As per IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, financial guarantees are contracis that require an entity to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs If a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in
accardance with the lerm of debt instruments. Financial guarantee liabifities are recognised initially at their fair value,
and the Initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial guarantee. The financial guarantee lfabllity is
subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount, and the loss allowance determined as expected credit loss
under IFRS 9. Financial guarantees are prascribed to be included within other liabilities.

Bangladesh Bank; As per SRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, financial guarantees, such as Letter of Credit
and Letter of Guaranies shoutd De treated as off balance sheet items. No fiability is recognised for the guarantee,
except the cash margin.

viii) Cash and cash equlvalents

IFRS: Cash and cash equivalent items should be reporied as cash itemn as per [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

Bangladesh Bank: Some cash and cash squivalent items, such as Money af call on short notice, treasury bills,
Bangladesh Bank bills and prize honds are not shown as cash and cash equivalents. Money at call on short netice is
shown separately in the balance sheet. Treasury pills, Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bonds are shown under
investment in the balance sheet. However, in the cash flow staternent, maoney at call and short notics and prize bonds
are shown as cash and cash equivalents beside cash-in-hand, balance with Bangladesh Bark and other banks.

i) Non-banking assets
IERS: There is no particutar/specific guideline about non-banking assets in IFRS.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circutar no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, there is a separate balance sheet item titled as
non-banking assat that exists in the standard format.

x} Cash flow statement

IFRS: As per IAS 7 Stalement of Cash Flows, cash flow statement can be prepared either in direct method or indirect
method. The presentation is selecled to present these cash flows In a manner that is most approgriate for the businass
or industry. The method selected is applied consistently.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 14, daed 25 June 2003, the cash flow statement is a mix of both the
direct and indirect methods.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Basis of preparation of financial statements {Gontinued)
Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {Continued)

xi) Balance with Bangladesh Bank

{FRS: Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other asset, as it i3 not available for use in day to day
operations, as per IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

Bangladesh Bank: Balance with Bangladesh Bank is treated as cash and cash equivalents.

xii} Presentation of intangible asset

IFRS: Intangible assets must be identified and recognised, and the disclosure must be given as per |AS 38 Intangible
Assels.

Bangladesh Bank: Intangible assets are shown in Other assets as there is no specific fegulation for intangible assets
in BRPD circuiar no. 14 dated 25 June 2003.

xlil) Off balance sheet items
IFRS: As per IFRS, there is no requirement for disclosure of off balance sheet items on the face of the batance sheet.

Bangtadesh Banlc As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003, off balance sheet items, &.g. Letter of Credit,
Letter of Guarantee and Acceptance must be disclosed separately on the face of the balance sheet.

xiv) Disclosure of appropriation of profit
IFRS: There is no requirement to show appropriation of profit on the face of statement of comprehensive income.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPO circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, apprepriation of profit should be disctosecf on
the face of profit and loss account.

xv) Loans and advancesfinvestments net of provision
IFRS: As per IFRS 9, loans and advancesfinvestmants should be presented net of provision.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRFD cireular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, provision on loans and advancesfinvestments
are prasented separately as liability and cannot be netted-off against joans and advances.

xvi} Recognition of interest in suspense

IFRS: Loans and advances to customers ara generally classified at amortised cost as per IFRS 9, and interest income
is recognised in the profit and loss account by using the effective interest rate method to the gross carrying amount
over the term of the loan. ©nce a loan subsequently becomes credit-impaired, the entity shall apply the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of these loans and advances.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular no. 44, dated 23 September 2012, once a loan is classified as impailred,
interest on such loans are not allowed fo be recognised as income, rather the corresponding amount needs 1o be
credited to an inferest in suspense account, which is presented as fiability in the halance sheet.

xvii) Provision on undrawn loan commitments

IFRS: As per IFRS 9, the Bank shall recognise credit losses on undrawn loan commitments, such as Letter of Credit
(L/C), Letter of Guarantee {L/G), elc.. as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flow that are
due by the customer if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to recelve.

Bangladesh Bank: As per BRPD circular 76, 7, dated 21 June 2018, and BRPD circular no. 14, dated 23 September
2012, the Bank is required to maintain a provision at 1% rate against off balance sheet exposuras (which includes all
types of undrawn loan commitments).

xviti) Name of the financial statements

IFRS: As per IAS 1, complete set of financial statements consists statement of {inancial position, statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, stalement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and nates, comprising
significant accounting pelicies and other explanatery information.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (Continued)
xvlii} Mame of the financial statements {Continued)

Bangladesh Banl: The forms of financlal statements and directives for preparafion thereof of the Bank companies in
Bangladesh are guided by BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003 and subsequent amendmenis thereof from time
to time. BRPD circutar no. 14 states the staternent of financial position as balance sheet and statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as profit and loss account,

Going concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prapared on a going concern assumption that the Bank wil
continue in operation over the foreseeable future. The Bank has neither any intentfon nor any legal or reguiatory
compulsion to liguidate or curtail materially the scale of any of its operations. Key financial parameters (inciuding
liquidity, profitability, asset quality, provision sufficiency and capital adequacy) of the Bank continued to demonstrate a
healthy trand for a couple of years. The rating outlook of the Bank, as reported by Alpha Credit Rating Limited is
‘Stable’ (Note 2.15). The management do not see any issue with respect fo going concern due to recent pandemic
COVID-19. Besides, the management is not aware of any other material uncerlainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial stalements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (Taka/ TK/ BDTY, which is the Bank's functional currency.
Except as indicated, figures have been rounded-off to the nearest Taka.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparaticn of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, eslimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amcunts of assels, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual resuits may differ from these astimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revislons to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, and in any fulure periods affected. The key item which invalve
these judgments, estimates and assumptions are discussed below:

impairment losses on loans and advances

In addition to tha provision made for loans and advances based on the guidetines of Bangladesh Bank, the Bank
raviews its loans and advances portfolio on a menthly basis to assess whether a further allowance for impairment
should be provided in the income statement. Judgments by the management is required in the estimation of these
amounis, and such estimations are based on assumptions about a number of factors, though actual resuits may differ,
resulting in future changes 1o the provisions.

Other items

Other key items where estimates or judgements were involved include:

a)  Useful life of fixed assets and right of use of assels Note 3.2.5

b}  Lease liabilities Note 3.2.6 and 12
¢} Provisions " Note 3.3

d)  Deferred {ax Note 12.7

e)  Provision for taxation Note 12.4

Materiality and aggregation

Each materiai ffem considered by the management as significant has been displayed separately in the financiai
statements. No amount has been set off, unless the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends to settle
on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the relevant accounting

standards.

Comparative information

Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank and are consistent with those used in the previous
year. Comparative information is rearranged wherever necessary to conform with the currant presentation.

Reporting period

These financial statements of the Bank presents financial information cover one calendar year from 1 January to 31
December 2022.
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Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

2

2.8

2.9

241

2.12

Basis of preparation of financial statements {Continued)

Date of authorization

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(FRSs) and the requirements of the Bank Company Act, 1991 (as amendead up to date), the rules and regulations
issued by Bangladesh Bank, They were authorised for issue by the Bank's management al__z g P 4}%%?"’;3

: FATTI

:
Thrd

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statemeni has been prepared in accordance with 1AS 7. Cash Flow Statements considering the
raquirements specified in BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003 issued by the Banking Regulation and Policy
Department of Bangladesh Bank.

Statement of changes in equity

The Statement of changes in equity reflects information about the increase or decreass in net assets or wealth. The .
Staternent of changes in equity i prepared principally in accordance with I1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
and under the guidelinas of Bangladesh Bank's BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003,

Basis of preparation of Houidity statement

The liquidity statement of assels and liabllities as on the reporting date has been prepared on sesidual maturily term as

per the following basis:

a) Balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call on shorl notice etc. are on the basis of their
malutlty term.

b) Invesimenis are on the basis of their residual maturity term.

¢) Loans and advances are on the basis of their repaymant/ maturity schedule.

d} Fixed assels are on the basis of their useful life.

g)  Other assets are on the basig of their assumption.

f) Borrawing fram other banks, financiat institufions and agents as per their maturily/ repayment term.

g) Peposits and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and behavioral past trend of last ona year.

hy  Otherlong term liability on the basis of their maturity term.
iy Provisions and other liabilities are on the basis of their seltlement.

Core risk management

According to BRPD circular no. 17 dated 7 October 2003, BRPD circular no. 4 dated 5 March 2007 and DOS circular
no. 4 dated 8 Qctober 2018, banks are required to put in place an effective risk management system. Bangladesh
Bank maniters the progress of implementation of these guidelines through its on-site inspection teams through routine
inspection. The risk management systemns of the Bank are discussed below:

Risk management

The Bank has in place an approved integrated Risk Management framework and Operational Risk Framework for
managing Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liguidity Risk, and Operatlonal Risk as evidenced by its Board approved “Risk
Management Policy”, “Market & Llquidity Risk Palicy”, Interest Risk Rate Policy”, "ICT Security Policy" and
“Operational Risk Policy”. As per policy, reporting fine of the fsk management function has been kept completely
independent of the husiness divisions. Following is the governance structure and Important policles on Risk
Management of the Banic:

- The Board of Directors through its sub-committes called 'Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC)' overseas
overall risi of the Bank.

. RMD is the organizational arm performing the funclions of identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling the
various risks and assists the Apex level committee and the various sub-committees in conversion of poticies into
action.

- Executive Risk Management commiitee (ERMC) has been sel up for Bangladesh operations to oversee {he overali
Risk Management of Bangladesh operations. ERMC meets regularly on monthiy hasis.
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212

2.12.1

Basls of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Core risk management (Continued)
Risk management {Centinued)

- The Bank has an established Risk Management Division (RMD) for Bangladesh Operations in fine with the similar set
up of RMD in Head Office. The Bank has appointed Country Chief Risk Officer for Bangladesh Operations, who
functionally reports to Chief Risk Officer. Under the supervision of Country GRO, RMD-Bangladesh looks after all risk
functions except credit Risk. As part of RMD, Treasury Middle Office (TMO) monitors day-to-day trading activities of the
dealing room. TMO focuses on Market Risk in the portfolio where RMD at Head Office has been actively engaged in off-
site review of tha TMO for Bangladesh Operations and has been extending full support in addressing Risk related
issues. MIS has been developed for addressing Market/Liquidity/Credit while as per requirement stipulated in
guidelines, all sorts of Treasury dealing l.e., Dealer/Counterparty/MM & FX Gaps/Foreign Exchange Exposure Limii atc.
are provided to RMO on a dally basis.

- Furthermore, BMD is in process of setting up Operational Risk and Information Technology Risk functions within RMD
in coordination with Head Office Operational Risk Division and information Securily Division to strengthen its oversight
of operations and Information technology.

- RMD prepares "Monthly Risk Management Report (MRMR)" on a monthly pasis and "Comprehensive Risk
Management Report (CRMR)" ont a half-yearly basis as part of regulatory reguirement, which is also discussed In the
‘Exacutive Risk Management Committes (ERMCY)' meelings on monihly basis. These fisk reports are prepared after
receiving data/information from various departmenis/units, which are then compiledfrefined while taking care of its
validation & accuracy through cross matching of data with the statement of affairs, where applicable.

. Siress Tesl exercise is being conducted by RMD covering cradit liquidity/Forex/capital Adequacy areas in order to
gauge shock absorbing capacity of the Bank. Shocks are applied at minor, moderate and major levels as fo ascertain
whether the Bank would be able to sustain under these three stress situations.

Operational risk
Impact: Financial / Non-Financial

Capital effected: Financial, Social, Human and Intellectual Capitals

Miitigation Stralegy: Embedding a sustainable risk culture remains the Bank's core objective which includes effective
management of operationat issues and emerging risks across the Bank and in its overseas operations via deployment
of required resources, tools and continuous supervision. Tha new QOperaticnal Risk Framework, Policy and Standards,
duly approved by the Board, have been rolied out along with new system piatforms (Cperational Risk System) for
recording and tracking of risk events including non-financial risks. The Bank aim to implement a new process based
Risk and Control Self-Assessment method across the group in order to efiectively manage operational risks and
sontinuously monitor effectiveness of defined controls through first line self-assessment reviews especially for the
processes and aclivities which may significantly impact the Bank’s risk appetite. Further, new and amended products,
systems, activities and processes are subject lo comprehensive operational risk assessments before implementation or
launch,

Credit risk management

"An integrated credit risk management system is already in place 10 ensure risk minimization and maintain asset
quality. The Bank maintains separate teams for marketing of new loans and fisk assessment in order to ensure that
proper due diligence in the approval process. A comprehensive  risk assessment is mandatory before
recommendation/approvat of each credit proposals.

All loan proposals are inifiated through the business team in conjunciion with Credit Analysis Unit (CAU)} after detail
anaiysis, which are subsequently elevated o the Credit Risk Management (CRM) department. Upors receipt of the
proposal, due diligence is conducted by CRM and Chief Risk Officer - Bangladesh and subsequently same is placed to
Country Credit Commiliee of Rangladesh (CCCRB). CCCB, in line with its discretionary powers, approves, declines or
recommends he proposals for next level approval. While conducting the due diligence, CRM ensures compliance of all

local regulations as well as the hank's internal palicy.

Once credit facility(is) of a customer is approved, a formal sanction advice is communicated to the business team and
Credit Administration Department (CAD) for further processing. i case of approval, upon completion of security/charge
gocumentation and compliance of other terms & conditions as per the sanction, a Dishursement Authorization
Cerlificate (DAC) is issuad by CAD for allowing credit facillfies tc the clients. The function of CAD has been ceniralized
and also kept separate and independent o ensurs petter control, due diligence on documentation, operation,

maonitoring & reporting.
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2.12.3

Rasis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Core risk management {(Gontinued)
Credit rlsk management (Continued)

The credlt risk assessmant process, policles and manuals are reviswed with regutar intervals, where improvements are
made in line with changes in business dynamics, policies, macre-economic factors, technology and overal operafional
environment. A credit plan Is formulated and finalized before starting of a new year and an appropriate targets are set
in line with the Bank's overali strategy, risk acceptance griteria, economic outlook of the country and policies of
requilatory bodies. Subsequently, quarterly analysis against actual achievements viz-a-viz allocated (argets is also
carled oul where appropriale strategy with remedial measures are also taken to improve the shortfalls, if any.

With a view to strengthening the credit sisk framework, the Bank has developed an interna! rating and electronic credit
line propasal module named Credit [nitiation & Internal Rating Systermn (CIIRS) to assess borrower's health bath an
chjective and subjective grounds before sanctioning any loan. This CHRS score along with Bangladesh Bank
prescribed Internal Credit Risk Rating System {ICRRS) score are avaluated for rating of a potential borrower before
granting any loan approval. Moreover, in line with guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank {BB) regarding Environmental
and Social Risk Management (ESRM), the Bank has ajready incorporated the environmental risk rating checklist for
each proposal in order to ensure meliculous compliance. In addition to BB ESRM guidelines, an in-house
comprehensive Environmental and Sociat Risk Management (ESMS) guidelines have also been formutated and
environmental risk rating is also generated for each proposal. Appropriate terms, conditions and covenants are also
made part of the sanction for better monitoring and fo maintain a sound portfolic of the Bank under sustainable

financing objectives.

On the other side, an aclive recovery unit (RU) is in place for reqular monitaring of overdue loans, waich list, classified,
written off, rescheduled/ restructured accounts. RU of the Bank is headed by the Chief Risk Officer - Bangladesh
(CRO) and comprised of members from Credit Risk Management {CRM), Credit Administration Department (CAD) and
Comporate & Investment Banking Group {CIBG). RU regulady monitors the entire portfolio based on perlodic MIS,
where CRO-BD collaborates with all the team members for any necessary action as and when required. An appropriate
watch list parameters and early alert system is also in place for better monitoring of the weak accounts. A manthly
report on default and watch fist accounts is also generated to review the portfolio and to reconcile the action plans
against each account.”

Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign exchange risk asises from fluctuations in currency prices, influenced by various macro and micro economic
factors. Contemporary financial instifutions engage in activities starting from baslc currency buy, sail, imports, exporis
and remittances to complex structured products. Within the Bank, the Treasury department is vested with the
respansibility to measure and minimise risk associated with the Bank's foreign currency position.

The eurrency risk is regulated and monitered against the regulatory/siatutory imits enforced by Bangladesh Bank. The

forsign exchange exposure, i.e., net open: position limits in respeclive currencles are managed against the prescriped
limits allowed by Bangladesh Bank and also through internat limits imposed by the group office,

Asset llabillty management

Asset and Liability Management (ALM) is a practice used by the Bank to mitigate financiat risks resulting from a
mismatch of assets and fiabiliies. ALM strategies employ a combination of Risk Management encompasses the
identification, analysis, and response to risk factors that form part of the life of a business. It is usually done with and
financial planning and are often used by the Bank to manage long-termn risks that can arise due to changing
circumstances.

Asset Liability Managament funcion primarily focuses on strategic positioning of the balance shes! of the Bank and Is
also considered as Balanced Liguidity Managemarg. Liquidity Management has its two wings- Asset Management and
Liabitity Management. Rising of excess assets like Investment and Advances in order to maximize profit may
sometimes encounter liquidity crisis, which may lead to run on the Bank and ultimate collapse. Cn the ¢ther hand
keeping or excess liquidity may hamper the Bank's growth by reducing its return/profit. So in both Asset Management
and Liability Management is the main factor.

Asset Liability Management Policy of Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations aims to balance varlous important
issues like profitabilily, risk, growth in asset & liability and stability as well as sustainabifity of eamings in a coherent
manner by laying down a transparent framework for governance of the ALM function. Broadly, this policy aims to
achigve the following objectives:

- Provide guidelines for appropriate diversification and selection of desirable investments {o take advantage of arising
opportunities in approved investment avenues;

- Provide parameters and critesia for investment in domestic market for the purpose of efficient utilization of resources,
opiimization of prof and regulatory compliance;
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Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued}
Core risk management {Gontinued)
Asset liability management {Continued)

- Ensure that liquidity risk is effectively and proactively managed by the Bank by maintaining desirable level of fiquidity;
- Re-pricing of assets and liabilities with a view to profit maximization depending on market situation;

- Propel bank's sirategic planning process for the benefit of the organization;

. Maintain different ratios and positicns of balance sheet within regulatory and controliable limits;

- Control Liguidity Management hy ensuring that the demand for funds is supported by cash and liquid assets in
various altemative scenarics,

- Maxirnize net interest margins and manage interest Rate nsk.

The ALCO's primary function/respansibiily is to ensure the ALM management in line with ALM guidelines provided by
Bangladesh Bank as well as the Bank's own ALM guidelines for the strategic Management of asset and liabilities.
ALCO regutarly reviews the Bani's asset-liability position, overalt economic condition, capital adequacy, halance shaet
risk and take necessary steps ta Maximize return, Besides these all regulatory reguirements like CRR, SLR, RWA,
LCR, NFSR are reviewed by asset llability committee.

Money laundering risk

The Bank Management has sincere commitment and efforls that have been displayed in the year 2022 for prevention
of Money Laundering (ML}, Countering the Financing of Terrarism {CFT) and Protiferation of Waapons of Mass
Destruciion. Tha Bank's efforts were reflected on adherence of KYC/CDD completion and simultaneously, accruing the
business along with ensuring transaction monitoring and sanction screening. in this aspect Bank established AML Unit
in 2017 and the right resources and system are ailolled to the unit to monitor transactions, customer onboarding,

sanction screening, elc.

Keeping the enhanced monitoring and focus on Trade Based Money Laundering, the Bank has rolled out technology-
based solutions for vessel tracing, Price verification, Sanction screening, Mufti-level approval Matrix for high-risk
transactions, etc. to strengthen control environment while ensuring robust regulatory reporting such as CTR, STRISAR,

Self-assessment reparting elc.

Especially, the Bank has adopted a siringent policy to manitar and mitigate the risks of suspicious accounts fhat are
suspected of being used for money laundering. Furthermore, the Bank has centralized Account opening, Remittance
services, Trade oparation to mitigate the risks of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing, as under with the hotistic
approach.

The Rank arranged AML and CFT training sessions in 2022 for employees comprises of existing and new employees.
A schedule of inspection for branches and different functions Is in place to ensure that all functions are adhering the
retatad AML and CTF regulations and the Bank laid down policy and procedure on a confinuous basis and de not offer
services or provide assistance in transactions, which possibly be agsociated with money being derived from suspected
iltegall oriminal acliviies or customer are under proscribed name by UN, OFAC, Bangladesh sanction list, etc.

Internal Control and Compliance (IGC)

Management have their defined rolas and respensibility to maintain an adequate and effective system of Internal
Conirols and every endeavor is made o implement sound contro! procedures and control environment. It was evident
that the Bank's management meticuiously observed and ensured implementation of regulatery direstives, compliance
of the findings and recommendations of internal audit and central bank inspections and banking activities as per set

paiicies and procedures.

Internal Cantrol and Compliance policies of the Bank cutiines the overall Conirol Objectives and Controls Framewark.
Bank Alfalah Coniroi Framework is bullt on ‘Three Line of Dafense Modei' in line with the Bangladesh Bank Prudential
Regulations on “Internal Control & Compliance” and Group pelicy. The Control Framework focuses on devising policies
and procedures that outline contro! activities so that process owners perform their functions without any risk exposuie.
This aspect is further evaluated and monitored through various organizational functions as part of Risk Management,
Compiiance, Internal Conirels and Intemal Audit departments with different reporting structures fo ensure

independence and transparency.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Core risk management {Continued)
Internal Contro! and Compliance (IcC) (Continued)

The Bank's estabiished Compliance and Canirols Commitiee (CCC) which comprises of GEO and Senior Executives of
the Banik is entrusted with enhanced govemance and monitaring as part of the overall Control Environment. Internal
control and Gompliance analyzes the major controf gaps, escalates the issues, devises corrective action plan and
develops iraining plans for the staff. Comprehensive reviews of KYC, AML, and other critical regulatory areas were
iriggered based on the aleris and exceplions generated from the dashboard. Anomalies identified as a resuit of
different periodic and ongoing reviews are conveyed to the concerned stakeholders for taking necessary remedial
measures, which significantly improved the controls environment of the Bank. The Bank has also established full-
fledged AML UNIT to ensure detail control and governance for Anti money laundering and Combating terrorist financing
directives issued by Bangladesh Financial Inteliigence Unit (BFIU).

Moreover, the Bank is using a comprehensive Management Testing and Incident Reporting Framework under Risk
Management Depariment for ensuring ongoing operating affectiveness of majority of key controls and has significantly
addressed the dasign improvement opportunities identified during the year. While concerled efforts have always bean
made to comply with the Bangladesh Bank Guidetings, i.e., the ideniification, evaiuation and management of rishs
within each key activities of banik and continued evaluation and changes to procedures remains an ongoing process. tn
accordance with the BB directives, the Bank's External Auditors were engagad for annual review for yearly review.

Additionally Planning, Organizing and Supervising business performance metrics and the Audit and Inspection of
Branches, including the monitoring of risk-based business transactions have all been duly performed by the different
divisions of the Bank in Bangladesh. Notable that, Audit and Inspection Division of the Bank conducls the Audit in two
aspects, international Audit team conduct comprehensive audit for the Bangladesh operation while Country Audit team
carrias out Internal Audits fo ensure compiiance of regulatory direclives as well as the synchronization and adherence
to taid-out Policies and Proceduras. This internal Audit team reports directy to AIG and is independent from Country
Management,

internal audit

The Internal Augit (#A) selup at Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations is an independent and comprehensive
function which nat only provides objective assurance regarding state of Governance, Risk management, Compliance
and Controls: but alse a consuling acivity designed o add vaiue by highlighting areas for improvement and thus
helping the Bank achieve ifs objectives effectively and efficiently.

Dynamic risk assessment and centinuous evatuation of the overall contrel and risk environment, provision of
reasonable assurance and placement of significant matters for ovarsight of the Board and its subcommittees, has
remained the halimark of our internal Audit Function.

The independent reporting of Chief Internal Auditor {ClA)Head of Internal Audit to the Board Audit Committee {BAC)
ensures independent decision making and further ansuring compliance to the regulatory guidelines and requirements
of the international standards for professional practices issued by Institute of Internal Auditors (1iA). As a step forward,
Group follows the globally recognized Risk Based Audit Methodology along with compliance of International standards
remained on top priority for our 1A function. The same enables formulation of policies and strategy in line with Board
Audit Committee (BAC) and Regulatory advices, correlating with the industry’s pest practices, The Bank's internal Audit
Unit plays an important role by assisting the Board Audit committee {BAC) in executing its role by collecting & sharing
the desiredfrequired information and being instrumental in carrying out and follow up of the action points/instructions
issued by Board Audit Committee (BAC).

The Internal Audit Unit continued to perform its effective role both on assurance and consulting fronts during the year
2022, Suitably equipped with professionatly qualified and competent resources from auditing, accountancy,
management professians; the unit is operational under a diversified scope of work which encompasses audits of Retall-
Conventiona! and Islamic Banking branches, Information System, Management audits, Risk Assels Reviews, Shariah
Audits and virtual monitoring through offsite survelllance systert. Special focus af the unit remained over compietion of
various specialfreguiatory assignments entrusted by Bangladesh Bank to remain compliant resulting into avoidance of
any Reguiatory breach. in addition, effective follow-up and support to management in timely ractification of audit
observation is provided through a dedicated Enforcement Function, Undes Quality Assurance setup, Quality Assurance
and Impravement program and independent audit rating mechanism is alsc estabtished.

The visien, i.e, “To be the best Audit set up as per Global Standards and hefp shaping the future of the Bank”,
motivates and drives the leadership of Audit & Inspection Group (AIG) to keep on exceiling In every aspect white
keeping in mind the strategic directions set by the Bank. Core values of igaming, openness, empathy and trust have
peen pursued to align the activities of AIG with its vision and expectations of its stakeholders. These values play an
integral part in helping the Audit and Inspection Group moving in the right direction.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Gore risk management {Gontinued) °

internal Contro! and Compliance (ICC) {Continued)
internal audit {Continued}

wWith continuous support from the BAC; Internal Audit Unit is all geared up by pulting on continucus and dedicated
efforts to strengihen the Internal Audit sunction and Internal Control System of the Bank, for this Internal Audit has
undertaken numerous strategic Initiatives for the year 2022 including;

- iImplementation of Audit system solution for capturing complete audit process cycle.

- Review and Updating of Risk Control Matrix for all auditable function/areas.

- Continuous alignment of audit procedures and approach as per HA standards and Regulatory Guidsiines.

. Strengthening of Audit Data Analytics approach for continuous auditing through leveraging lechnology and optimal

use of resources.

All of the aforementioned actlvities were aimed at increaging synergies betwaen various AIG functionaries.

Fraud and forgery

The Bank has an effeclive mechanism in place to deal with any fraud and forgery. It has Fraud and Investigation Unit
under Audit and Inspection Group at Head Office that raports to the Board through the Board’s Audit Committes. The
Unit performs fraud investigations to identify fraudulent acts and conducts post investigation/ fraud audits to identify
control breakdowns and establish financial loss. Further, the stakeholders’ interest has been sacured by the
establishment of robust Whisile Blow policy where every whistle blown has been invariabiy reported to the Chair of the
Audit Committee along with Group Head — Audit and Inspection.

During the period no fraud was identified by the Bank. Details are shown in Note 37.

Information and Communication Technology {1CT) security cyber risks

The adaptation of banking technology has been significant in recent years, Banks have embraced digilal transformation
to keep pace with changing customer demands and expectations. The best application, the best hardware, the best
people are the three things that have kept us in front.

Information Technology (T) has enabled banks to automate many manual processes, such as account management
and lransactions, reducing errors and spaeding up transactions. Additionally, IT has made it possible for banks to offer
24/7 services to customers through onfine banking. T has also increased the security of financial transactions by
implementing advanced security measures like encryption and multi-factor authentication

The Bank offers real lime account cpening service through its Rapid digital account system, customer can open
account anytime-anywhere banking by adopting latest technology. Hefshe can transfer fund to any account of any bank
within the country. Customer can pay their mobite bills, Gas bill and etectricily bi#l through internet Banking.

The Bank achieved compliant status as PCI DSS Compllance is mandated by Central bank.
This standardized process and practice will ensure data security and baseline standards, The Bank always focus and
prioritize adherence to the rules & regutations. Maintaining PCIS DSS ceriification standards will remain a continued

focus for which both IT teams will keep jaint afforis.

One of the Bank's core strategies is techno-centricity to remains relevant and aligned with the Bank's changing needs
and goals to achieve the GROWTH.

Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R}

In Bangladesh, organizational responsibility to the community is a mandatory action expected by the regulators to
ensure the Bank's commitment towards creating a better sociely. To note, the Bank, ever since its inception, has been
taking part in promoling various initiatives and sponsored numerous social activities in line with CSR philosophy of the
Bank. This continuous effort in CSR by the Bank porlrays its image and core beliaf as being a progressive and modern
bank with sccial responsibility. The various CSR aciiviies undertaken by the bank includes promoting initiatives In the
sducation and heatth sector, disaster management of the country, climate change mitigation and adaptation, premeting
cuiture and heritage of the country, support for women enfrepreneur, providing easy access io health-care information

to general people etc.

in 2022, the Bank had conducted several programs in the education sector comprising of donations (approx. 18% of
the tolal CSR Spending) to Prime Minister's Education Assistance Trust Fund based on central bank circilars and
provided scholarships to 14 children of Guishan Literacy Program scheols for a full year to ensure good education for
underprivileged giving them life changing opportunity and hepe for a brighter future for themselves and their farnilies.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Gontinued)

Furlhermore, in the climate change miligation and adaptation sector, the Bank had partnersd with Prova Aurora, a
ciimate sensitive and youih focused enterprise In Bangladesh and provided financial assistance for the project of
sustainable waste management with BSF larva farming in Satkhira district. Additionally, In an effort to aid the fload
affectad people of Sylhet region as disaster management, the bank actively participated in distibuting relief packs
containing daily necessities and health items in the area of Sylhet and its outskirls ihrough bank's representative. The
Bank also contributed to the treatment of Md. Shahadut HMossain, lecturer of Kurigram Government Coilege, who has
neen diagnesed with acute myeloid leukemia based on central bank letter. These sorts of initiatives are well recelved

and broadiy appreciated by the reguiators.

Green banking

Green Banking refers to the efforts of the banking sector to keep the environment green and minimize greanhouse
effects through rationalizing their sirategies, policy, decisions and actions pertaining 1o Banking service, business and
internal operaticnal activities as well as to educate and motivate their clientele to adopt green practices through offering
financially beneficial Banking services and preferential patronization. Bank Alfatah understands its responsibility in
protecting the environment and conserving natural rescurces. We are cognizant of the environmental consequences of
our actions and wark towards developing a sustainable business that benefits ail our stakeholders. In accordance with
the globally acceptable standard and regulatory frame work in vogue for green Banking, Bank Alfalah is aclively
involved in the following green aciivities:

- We are gradually moving towards green financing and have incorporated Environmental Risk Grading in our Credit
Approval process.

- Conventional lighting has been replaced with energy offictent bulbs and equipment.

- Green Office Guidelines” have been launched and implemeniad across our operations. These guidelines addrass
possible avenues for reducing in-house carbon footprint in the Bank.

- One of our ATM booths is now fully powered by renewable solar energy. The Bank pians to converl all its ATM booths
to green ATMs.

- We are encouraging customers to set their Personal |dentification Number (PiN) through phone banking. This
paperiess salution is not ony environmentally friendly but alsc provides an lnstant, safe and convenlent option 1o the

Bank’s cusiomers.

- Launched several digital banking initiatives, products and lransaction services like Debit Cards, Internet banking with
fund transfers and mobile top up, e-stalements, SMS Alert Service, BEFTN & RTGS Service, phone banking Service
atc. to reduce the usage of printing papers and stationeries.

- Launched *Video Conferencing” through *IP Phang” to initiate meeting In lieu of physical travel which would help
saving cost and energy.

- Gradually replaced ali Bank maintained transports with fuel efficient alternatives.
Credit rating of the Bank

As per the BRPD instruction circular No.6 dated 5 July 2008, the Bank has done its credit rating by Alpha Cradit Rating
Limited based on the financial statements dated 31 Decaember 2021.

Particulars Date of Rating| Long Term Short Term Valid Till
Entity Rating 28-Apr-22 AA+ 57 -1 27-Apr-23

Alpha Credit Rating Limited has upgraded the long-term rating to AA+ (proncunced as ‘double A plus) from AA
{proncunced as ‘doubte A} and affirmed Shori-term rating of 87-1 of Bank Afalah Limited (Bangladesh Opesations)
nased or Audited Financials for the year ended 31 December 2021 and other relevant quantitative as well as

qualitative information.

The rating reflects the stability of financial performance along with guite satisfactory liquidity position, quality of
management team and efficient fund management of the bank. Alpha Rating observed that Bank Alfalah's
{Bangladesh Operation) contribution to deveiop HR division is strengthening over the years. {n addition, good corporate
governance practice, satisfaclory CSR acliviies in last few years, sound envircnmentat risk management policy and
low unsystematic rigk have supported the above raling positively.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements (Continued)
Gredit rating of the Bank {Continued)

The rating has considered surplus provision, sufficient CRR & SLR compared to the requirement, improved average
eaming assets, sufficlent Capital adequacy, increased net interest income, increased net profit and ADR within the

regulatory requirement. ‘

Commercial Banks rated AA+ have very sirong credit quality and are subject to very low credit risk. Shori term rating of
ST-% reprasents bank's Superior capacity for timely repayment of its obligations.

Accounting for changes in policy, accounting estimates and errors

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, states that the efiect of a change in
aceounting palicy and correction of errors, i material, is to be applied retrospeclively, and change in an accounting
astimate Is to be applied prospectively. The carrying amouni of assets, liabilities, or equity may be changed following a
change in acceunting estimates in the pericd of the change. The Bank followed the same accordingly.

Board Audit Gominittee (BAC)

Mame Designation
Mr. Khalid Qurashi Chairman
Mr. Abdulla Khalit Al Mutawa Mermber

Mr. Khalid Mana Saged Al Otaiba Mermber

Ms. Dr. Ayasha Khan Member

Mr. Tahir Khusshid Secretary

Workers Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)}

As per Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 and amendments therecf, an employer is required to pay 5% of its net profit 10
the 1) Workers Participatory Fund {80%), 2) Workers Welfare Fund {10%) and 3) Workers Weifare Foundation Fund
{10%) for further appropriate disbursement of the funds to all members (i.e. Beneficiaries, as defined under the Act) as
prescribed under the Act. However, on 14 February 2017, Ministry of Finance (Bank and Financial Institution Division}
issued a letier to the Secretary, Ministry of Labour and copied to the Governor, Bangladesh Bank and Chairman of the
Association of Bankers' Bangladesh Limited (ASB) and instructs the Ministry of Labour and Manpower to take
necessary action not to apply Section 55 of the Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 on Banks and financial institutions.
Hence, no pravision is required for WPPF payments is being kept.

Formulation of Bangladesh Bank Agricultural Development Common Fund
(Ref Bangladesh Bank ACD Circutar No 08 dated 19 Dec 2022)
Bangladesh Bank has advised all commercial Banks to create fund with the shortfall amount of the target.

Qur larget was Tk. 19 Crore for the FY 2021-2022 and we have disbursed Tk. 77.615 Crore i.&. 408.5% achievement.

Financial liferacy

Financial literacy is essential in supporting financial inclusion and is important because it assists people in becoming
self.sufficient and financially steble. Leveraging on the phenomenon that financial literacy is a prerequisite for
sustainable financial inclusion, Bank Alfalah has implemented a number of inittatives in 2022. In order to strengthen
financial knowledge of students, parents & teachers, sessions were conducted in Morning Glory School, Zia College
and Kindergarten Association. Targeted audience was briefed about importance of financial inclusion and awareness
was raised against financial frauds. In addition, face to face meetups with different small business associations
including Small Business Association of Refrigerators, Smail Business Association of Glass and Small Business
Association of Construction Material were held to raise financiat awareness, responsible financial hehavior & informed
financial decisions. In the sessions, participants were also encouraged to conduct their transactions through hanking
channels. Furlharmore, a workshop was held in a function of Pallani Mohila Shomity where basics of financial
planning, its impertance for individual & society and banking needs of women members of the sociely was explained.
The Bank had also provided schelarships to 14 children of Guishan Literacy Pragram schools for a full year {o ensure
good education for underprivileged glving them life changing apporlunity and hope for a brighter future for themselves
and thefr families. :
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Basis of preparation of financia! statements {Continued)

Cost saving initiative as per Bangladesh Bank guldelines (BRPD Gircular No. 28, dated July 26 2022 and BRPD
Circutar No 30 dated 27 July 2022)

To comply with the above guidetines, Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations has taken severat initiatives to
reduce cost from the budget by rationalizing and restricting of expenses iike Fuel, Electricity, Entertainment, Travelling,
Computer and Accessories, Electrical equipment, Furniture etc. The Bank has not purchased any vehicle in 2022.

Refer to Nofe 25 & 31.

Capital work-in-progress:

Work-in-progress reprasents Capital expenditures ie renovation expenses of office premises. As 99% works have been
completed, so, we have nooked the expenses in WIP in the year 2022. These are transferred to specific assets as and
when assets become available for use. .

General

a) Figures of previous year nave been rearranged, wherever considered necessary, ta conform with the current
year's presentafion.

by  The expenses, irrespective of capital or revenue in nature, acerued/due but not paid have been provided for in
the books of accounts.
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Notes to the financlai statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decempor 2022 {continued)

3 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies sef out pelow have been applied consistently to all periads presented in these financial
stalemenis of the Bani have been applied consistently except otherwise instructed oy Bangladesh Bank as the prime
regulatar, Cerfain comparalive amounts in the financial siatements have been reclassified and rearranged to conform fo
the current year's presentation.

31 Forelgn currency transactions

According to |AS 21 The Effacts of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates transactions in foreign currencies are recorded
in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing on the dale of the transaction. Monetary assets and
llabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the spot
exchange rate at thal date. Non-menetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencles that are measured at
fair value are retranslated inlo the functianat currency at the spot exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and iiabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
sranslated using the exchange rate at the date of tha fransaction.

Foreign cusrency differences arising on translation are recognised in the profit and loss statement.
3.2  Assets and basis of their valuation

3.2.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, ATM, unrestricted balances held with Bangtadesh Bank
and its agent bank, balance with other banks and financial institutions, monsy at call on short nofice, investments in
treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bill and prize bonds.

3.2.2 Investments

All investments are initially recognised at cost including acquisition charges associated with the investment., Premiums
are amortised and discount acoredited using the effective of historical yieid method. Accounting treatment of
government treasury vills and bonds {categorised as HET and HTM) are made in accordance with Bangladesh Bank
DOS Circular letter no. 5 dated 26 May 2008 and subsequent clarifications DOS Circular letter no. 5 dated 28 January
2008

Held to Maturity (HTM)

Investments which have 'fixed or determinable paymernits’ and are intended 1o be held to matutity are classiiied as ‘Held
to Maturity'. These are measured at amortised cost at each year end by taking into account any discount or premium in
acquisition. Any increase of decrease in value of such invastmenis are booked under equity and in the profit and loss
statement respectively.

Held for Trading {(HFT)

Investments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in short trading
or If designated as such by ihe managemant. After initial recognition, investments are marked to market weekly and
any decrease in the present value is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and any increase Is booked to
Revaluation Reserve Account through Profit and Loss Account as per DOS Cireular no. 5 dated 28 January 2009,

Value of investments has been shown as under:

W\.’estment Class Initia} Recognition Measurement afier Recording of changes 1
initial recognition

Govt, treasury Increase in value of such investments

securities - Heid to Cost Amortised cost is booked o equity, decrease to profit

taturity (HTM) and loss account.

Govt, treasury Loss to Profit and Loss Account, gain

securities - Held for Cost Fair value 10 Revaluation Reserve through Profit

Trading (HFT) and Loss Account.

Debeniure/Bond Face value Face value None

Prize bond Cost Cost None
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Significant accounting policies (Continued}
Assets and basis of their valuation {Continued)

Loans and advancesfinvestmants and provislons for leans and advances/investments

a) Loans and advances of conventional Bankingfinvestments of Isiamic Banking branches are non-derivative
financial assefs with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market and that the Bank

does not seil in the normal course of business.

b)  Aleach balance sheat date and periodically throughout the year, the Bank reviews loans and advances 10 855835
whether objective evidence that impairment of a loan or portfolia of joans has arisen supporting a change in e
classification of loans and advances, which may resuit in a change in the provision required in accordance with
BRFD circular no. 3 dated 21 April 2019, BRPD circular no.1 dated 20 February 2018, BRFD circular no.15 dated
27 September 2017, BRPD circular no.16 dated 18 November 2014, BRPD circular no. 5 dated 29 May 2013,
BRIPD circuiar no.14 dated 23 Saptember 2012 and BRPD circular ne, 19 dated 27 December 2012. The
guidance in the circular joliows a formulaic approach whereby specified rates are appiied 1o the varlous
categories of loans as defined in the circular. The provisioning rates aré as follows:

Provision
Types of toans and advances ST SMA 85 DF BL
Consumar;
House building and professional 1.00% -2.00% | 1.00% - 2.00% | 20.00% 50.00% 100.00%
Other than housing finance and | 5 go0; _ 5,00% | 2.00% - 5.00% { 20.00% | 50.00% 100.00%
professionals to setup busingss
Provision for toan to broker house,
merchant banks, stock dealers, 2.00% 2.00% 20.00% 50.00% 100.00%
efc.
Shori- j-credi i
. m%?t term Agri-credit and micro 1.00% 1.00% 5.00% 5.00% 100.00%
ﬁgi‘;j”d medium enterprise 0.25% 0.25% | 2000% ]  50.00% 100.00%
Qthers 1.00% 1.00% 20.00% 50.00% 100.00%

BRPD Circutar no.14 dated 23 September 2012 as amended by BRPD Circular no. 19 dated 27 December 2012
also provides scope for further provisioning based on gualitalive judgments. in these circumstancas impairment
tosses are calculated on individual loans considered individually significant based on which specific provisions are
raised. If the specific provisions assessed under the qualitative methodology are higher than the speciic
provisions assessed under the formulaic approach above, the higher of the two is recognised in liabilities under
“Brovision for loans and advances” with any movemeni in the provision charged/released in the profit and loss
account. Classified loans are categorised inte sub-standard, doubtful and bad/loss based on the criteria stipulated

by Bangladesh Bank guideline.

¢) Loans and advances are written off to the extent that [) there is ne realistic prospect of recovery, and i) against
which legal cases are filed, where required and classified as badfloss as per as per BRPD circutar no. 2 dated 13
January 2003, BRPD circular no. 13 dated 07 November 2013 and BRPD circular no. 1 dated 06 February 2019

of Bangladesh Bank.

" These wilte off however will nof undermins/affect the claim amount against the borrower. Detaited memorandum
records for ail such written off accounts are maintained and followed up.

Staff lean

House Loan, Car Loan, Conveyance Finance Loan and Personal Loan are provided to the permanent staff at a
subsidised rate. Criteria and detail of type wise staff loan are given below:

House loan; A permanent staff completing 3 years of uninterrupted servica with the Bank or an experienced staff
serving not less than § years of his sarvice life inciuding 1 year with the Bank can avail house building foan subject to
getting approval from Human Resource Department, Head Office Karachi with the recommendalions of Country Head -
Bangiadesh Operations and Group Head of International Business.

Car Loan: Local cfficers Range-V1 and above wilt be eligible to avail car Loan facilities. Branch Manager below range Vi

may also be aliowed car lean facility with the entittements equivalent to Range-Vl and fuel entitternent for 20€ litters at
the digcretion of the management. The loan is approved by Country Head or Country Operation Head. :
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3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
3.2 Assets and basis of their valuation {Continued}
3.2.4 S5iaff toan (Continusd)

parsonal Loan: An employee completing his or her 3 maonths of services with the Bank can avall Personal Loan. The
loan is appraved by Country Head or Gountry Operation Head of the Bank.

Conveyance Finance Loan: Local officers Range-iV to V will be eligible o avail Car Loan facilittes. This loan
arrangement is like as allowance who doesn't get car loan facilily. Conveyance Finance Loan is approved by Gountry
Head or Country Operation Head.

3.2.5 Fixed assets ihciuding premises, furniture and fix{ures

Recognition and measurement

As per IAS 18 Property and Equipment llems of fixed assets exciuding fand are measured at cost less accumuiated
depreciation and accumulated Impairment iosses, if any. Land is carried at cost.

purchase of software that is integral to the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Cost includes expenditure that are directly aliriputable o ihe acquisition of asset and bringing to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating In the intended manner,

When significant parts of an item of fixed asset have differant useful lives, they are accounied for as separate itens
{major components) of fixed assets.

The gain or loss on disposal of an itern of fixed asset is determined by compaving the proceeds from disposal with fhe
carrying amount of the item of fixed asset, and is recognised in other income/other expenses in profit ar foss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of fixed asset is recognised i the carrying amount of the item If it is
probable that the future econamic benefits embodied within the part will fiow to the Bank and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced parts is derecognised. The costs of the day to day servicing of fixed assets
are recognised In the profit and loss staterment as incurred.

Pepreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets are recognised in the profit and loss statement on straight line mathod over its estimated
useful lives. In case of acquisition of fixed assets, depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition, whereas
depreciation on disposed off fixed assets are charged up lo the month prior 1o the disposal. Asset category wise
depreciation rates for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Category of asseis Rate of depreciation Useful life
Furniture, fixture and filtings 10% 10
Leasehold improvemant 20% 5
Gffice equipments 20% 5
Staff equipments 20% 5
Computer and refated equipments 25% 4
totor vehicles 25% 4
3.26 Leases

Right-of-use assets

The Bank recognises right-of-use assels at the date of initial appiication of IFRS 16. Right-of-use assels are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease labilities. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assels are presented under "Fixed
assets inciuding premises, funiture and fixtures" ’

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of shertterm leases, ie. for
which the iease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application. The Bank recognises lease payments
associaled with these leases as an expense. However, the bank has considered one lease agreement as short term
lease considering practical expedient.
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Significant accounting policies {Continued)
Assets and basis of their valuation (Continued)
Leases {Continued)

The contracts for ail leased premises including branches, head office, regional offices, data centres, ATM booths and
disaster recovery centres are considered for imptementation of IFRS 16.

Provisions for other assets

BRPD circular no.04 dated 12 April 2022 requires a provision of 100% cn other assels which are outstanding for one
year and above. The Bank maintains provisions in line with this circular unless it assesses there is no doubt of recovery
on items of other assets in which case no provision is kept,

Intangible assets and its amortisation

Software acquired by the Bank is staled af cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Subseguent expenditure on software assets is capltalized only when it increases the fulure economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it selates. Al other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization is recognized in profil or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the
date that ii is available for use since this most closely reflects the expecled pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset. In case of acquisition of software, amertization is charged from the month of
acquisition, whereas amortization on disposed off sofiware is charged up fo the month prior fo the disposal. The
estimated useful life of software is five years as such amortization is charged at the rate of 20% per annum.

Amortization mathods, useful lives and residual values are reviewad at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Reconciliation of inter-bank and inter-branch account

Account with regard te inter-bank (In Bangladesh and oulside Bangladesh) are reconciled regularly and there are no
material differences which may affect the financial statements significantly. Un-reconciled enltries/balances in the case
of inter-branch transactions on the reporting date are not material.

Liabtlities and basis of their valuation

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents

Borrowings from other banks, financiat institutions and agents includes refinance from Bangiadesh Bank against agro-
based credit, SME and EDF Loan ef., interest-bearing borrowings against securities from Bangiadesh Bank, call
barrowing from other banks and borrowing from other multilateral organdsations, These items are brought to financial
statements at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Details are shown in note 10

Deposits and other accounts

Deposits and other accounts include non interest-bearing current deposit redeamable at call, interest bearing on
demand and short-term deposits, savings deposit and fixed deposit. These items are brought into financial statements
are at the gross value of outstanding balance. Details are shown in note 11,

l.ease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the Jease, the Bank recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of fease
payments to be made over the lease term using incrementat borrowing rale at the date of initial application. Lease
liabitity is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying
amount fo reflect the lease payments, and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease

modifications,
Interest on the Jeass liability in each period during the fease term shall be the amount that produces a constant periodic

rale of interest on the remaining batance of the lease liability.

Provision for Habilities

As per IAS 37 Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits witl be required to
settle a current legal or consiructive obligation as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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Significant accounting policies {Continued)
Liabilities and basis of their valuation {Continued)

Provision for Off-balance sheet exposure

As per BRPD circular no.i4 dated 23 September 2012, the Bank has recognised 1% General Provision on the following
off-halance sheet exposues as defined in BRPD circular no.30 daled 24 November 2002 considering the exemplion as
provided through BRPD circuiar no. 1 dated 3 January 2018, BRPD circular no. 7 dated 21 June 2018, BRPD circular
no. 13 dated 18 Qctoher 2018, BRPD circular no. 2 dated 25 February 2019, BRPD circular no, g dated 27 May 2019
and BRPD circular letter no. BPRD(P-1)/661/13/2019-354 dated 13 January 2020.

- Acceptance and endorsements

- Lefters of guarantee
jrrevocable letters of credit

. Foreign exchange contracts

provisions on balances with other hanks and financial institutions (Mosiro accounts)

Provision for unsettied transactions on nostro accounts is made as per Foreign Exchange Policy Department (FEPD)
circular no. FEPD (FEMO) / 01/2008-677 dated 13 September 2005 of Foreign Exchange Policy Department (FEFD) of
Bangladesh Bank and reviewed semi-annually by the Bank’s management along with duly certified by the external
auditor. On the reporting date, the @ank has no unsetiled transactions outstanding for more than 3 menths and no
provision has been made in this regard.

Provislon for rebate to good horrower

As par BRPD circular no. 8 dated 19 March 2015 and BRPD circular no. 3 dated 16 February 2016 of the Banking
Regulation and Policy Department (BRPD) of Bangladesh Bank, commercial banks are required to provide 10% rebate
on the interest charged from “good borrowers” subject to some qualifying criteria.

Other liabilities

Oltier liabilities comprise items such as provision for loans and advancesfinvestments, provision for {axation, interest
payable, inlerest suspense, accrued expenses, lease obligation elc, Other fiabilities are recognised in the balance sheet
according to the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank, Income Tax Ordinance, 1924 and internal policy of the Bank.

Capital/Shareholders’ equity

Head office fund

This represents amounis deposited with Bangtadesh Bank in foreign currency as & part of minimum capital
requirements. According 1o subsection 3 of Section 13 of the Bank Company Act, 1991 as amended by BRPD circular
no. 11 dated 14 August 2008 and BRPD circular no. 18 dated 21 December 2014 all Banks are required to deposit with
Bangladesh Bank the higher of Tk. 4,000 million and minimum capital requirement calculated as 0% of risk weighted
assets. Details are shown in Note 13.

Other reserve

Other reserve arises from the revaluation of treasusy hills, Bangladesh Bank bills and treasury bands {(HFT and HTM) in
accordance with the DOS Circular no. 5 dated 26 May 2008 and DOS{SR) 1153/120/2010 dated & December 2010,

Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest on toans and advances is calculated on daily basis, Based on product features, interest is acerued or charged
to customers' accounts on monthly/quarierly basis.

In accordance with BRPD Circular no.14 dated 23 September 2012 as amended by BRPD Cireular No. 19 dated 27
December 2012 interest accrued on sub-standard loans and doubtful loans are credited to an “Interest Suspense
Accourt” which is included within "Other liabilities”. interest from loans and advances Ceases 1o be accrued when they
are classified as badfloss. {tis then kept in interest suspense in a memorandum account,
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3
3.6

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.54

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.10.1

3.10.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition {Continued)

Profit on investment {Islamic Banking)

Mark-up on invesiment is faken into income account proportionately from profit receivable account. Overdue
chargefcompensation on classified investments are transferred to profit suspense account Instead of income account.

Invesiment income

Income on investments are recognised on accrual basis. Invastment income includes discount on treasury bills and
Bangladesh Bank Dills, interesi on treasury bonds and fixed deposit with other banks. Capital gain cn investments in

shares are aiso included in investment income. Capital gain is recognised when it is realised.

Fees and commission Income
The Bank eams commission and fee Income from a diverse range of service provided to ils customers, Commission

and fee income is accounted for as follows:

income aarnad on the execution of a significant act Is recognised as revenue when the act is completed
income earned from services provided is recognised as revenue as the services are provided
. Commission charged to customers on letters of credit and letters of guarantee are credited to income at the time

of effecting the transactions.
Interest paid on horrowing and other deposits {Conventional Banking)
interest paid and other expenses are recognised an accrual basis.
Profit shared on deposits (Islamic Banking)
Profit shared to mudaraba deposits are recognised on accrua basis.

Dividend Income

Dividend incoms is recognised when the right to receive income is eslablished. Dividends are presented under
investment income.

Others

Foreign exchange gain/ foss

Exchange income includes all gain and losses from foreign currency day to day transactions, conversions and
revaluation of non monetary ifems.

Employee benefits

Provident fund ‘

Provident Fund benefits are given o the permanent staff of the Bank in accordance with the registered Provident Fund
rules, The Commissioner of Income Tax, Taxes Zone - 6, Dhaka, has approved the Provident Fund as a recognized
fund within the meaning of section 2(52) read with the provisions of part - B of the First Schadute of Income Tax
Ordinance, 1984, The reorganization took effect on 1 June 2005. The Provident Fund is operated by a Board of
Trustees consisting of 5 members of the Bank. All confirmed employees of the Bank are contributing 10% of their basic
salary as subscription to the Provident Fund. The Bank also confributes equai amount fo the Provident Fund.
Contributions made by the Bank are charged as expense and the Bank bears no further liakitity. Interest earned from
the invesiments is credited to the members' account on yaarly basis. Members are eligible to get both the contribution
afler 5 years of continuous service from the date of their membership. By Law the Provident fund is duly audited by
Rahman Rahman Hug, Chartered Accountants.

Gratuity fund

The Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme covering eligible employees whose period of employment with
the Rank is five years or more. Gratuity is payable lo staff on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service
under the scheme. The Banks fiability on this account stands as on 31 December 2022 was fully provided in accounts
considering the staffs accumulated gratuity entilements for their service with the Bank. The Gratuity Fund had been
approved by the National Board of Revenue in February 2011.
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3
3.10
3.10.2

3.10.3

3414

3.44.2

3.11.3

Signlificant accounting policies (Gontinued)
Employee henefits {Continued)
Gratuity fund (Continued)}

Etiginility to gratuity payments

Actual Year of Services Eligibility Calculation
Less than 5 Years Mot eligivle Nil
3 Years or more but less than 10 Years Eligible {Last basic drawn)* {Na, of years sarvice)
10 Years or more Eligivle (Last basic drawn)” {(No. of years service)* (1.5)

Short-ferm employee benefits

Shert-term employee benefit obligatiens are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
servica Is provided, A Yiability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under shart-ferm cash bonus or profit-
sharing pians if the Bank has & present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred lax are recognised in the profit and loss
statement except to the extent that it refaes 1o ftems racognised direclly in equity.

Current tax

Current 1ax is the tax expecied o be payable on the taxable profit for the year, calculated using tax rales as prescribed
in the lncome Tax Ordinance, 1984 and relevant Statutory Regulaiory Orders (SRO) and any adjusiment to tax payable
in respect of previous yaars. Currently the income tax rate applicable far publicly non-traded banks is 40%.

Deferred tax

Deferred lax is recognised in respecl of temporary differances belween the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for laxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the
following temporary differences:

e temporary differences on the initial recognition of assels or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

e taemporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that they will not
reverse In the foresesable future; and

e temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary diflerances when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

Deferrad tax assets and liabllities are offset if thera is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabliities against
current tax assets, and they relate {o income taxes jevied by the same tax authority on the same taxable enfity, or on
different tax enilies but they intend to seftle current tax liabilities and assels on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities wiil be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, lax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be ufiiised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit

will be realised.
Tax exposures

in determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Bank takes into aceount the impact of uncertain tax positions
and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may
involve a series of judgments about future events. New informalion may become available that causes the Bank to
change ils judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilitles; such changes to tax liabilities wili impact tax
expense in the period that such a determination is made.
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312

3.43

3.14

Significant accounting policles {Continued)

impairment of non-financial assels

The carrying amounts of the Bank's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at sach reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's

recoverabie amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised If the carrying amount of an asset or its Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) axceeds its estimated recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount of an assel or GGU Is the greater of its vaiue in use and its fair value iess costs to sell. In
assassing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounied to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific fo the asset or CcGu.,

Far the purpose of impairment testing, assefs that cannot be tested individually are grouped togetner intc the smallest
group of assets ihat generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of

olher assets or CGU.

Impalrment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are aflocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU {group of CGUs} and then to reduce the carfrying
amaunt of the other assets in the CGU {group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis,

Impairmenl losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
gecreased or no longer exisis. An impairment j0ss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment foss Is reversed only to the extent that the assel's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount {hat would have been determined, net of depraciafion or amoriisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past events and whose existance will be confirmed only by
{he occuirence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events. A contingent liability arlses when some, but
not all, of the criteria for recognizing a provision are mat.

IAS 37 applies prudence by deeming a past event o give rise to a present obligation ard an entity shall not recognize a
contingent lability. However, if it is possible rather than probable that an obligation exists, a contingent liability will exist,
not a provision in the financial statements. An entity shall disclose for each class of transaction of contingent liability at
the end of the reporting period if the contingent liability Is not remote.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of nor-accurfence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entiy.
Contingent assels are never recognised; rather they are disclosed in the financial statements when they arise.

The most significani areas where estimates and judgments have been applied are to caleulate provision for loans,
advances and Invesiments as per Bangladesh Bank guideline.
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Lo B

3 Significant accounting policles {Continued}
3.15 Gompliance of International Financial Reporting Standard {IFRSs}

While preparing the financiat statements, the Bank applied most of IASs and IFRSs. Details are given below:

Name of the standards IFRS | Implementation status by the Bank
First-time Adoption of Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards iFRS-1 [Not applicable
Share-based Payment IFRS-2 |Not appiicable
Business Combinations IFRS-3 {Not applicable
Insurance Contracts IFRS-4 |Not applicable
Non-current Assats Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations IFRS-5 | Not applicable
Expiosation for and Evaluation of Mineral Rescurces IFRS-6 |Not applicable
Finanglal instruments: Disclosures IFRS-7 |Applied with some departure (note 2.1}
Operating Segments IFRS-8 |Not Applicable
Financial instrurmants IFRS-0 |Applied with some departure (note 2.1)
Cansolidated Financial Statements IFRS-10tNot Applicabla
Joint Arrangements IFRS-11|Not applicable
Disclosure of interest in Other Entities IFRS-12{Not Applicable
“air Value Measurament IFRS-13|Applied with some departure (note 2.1)
Reguatory Deferral Accounts IFRS-14iNot applicable
Revenue from contractors with customars IFRS-15|Applied
Leases JFRS-16|Applied
Presentation of Financial Statements 1AS-1 |Applied with some departurg (note 2.1)
Inventories 1AS-2 [Not Applicable
Statement of Cash Flows IAS-7 Applied with some deparlure (note 2.1}
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors IAS-8 |Applied
Events ajter the Reporting Pericd {AS-10 |Applied
Construction Contracts 1AS-11 {Not Applicable
Income Taxes IAS-12 |Applied
Properly, Plant and Equipment 1AS-16 ;Applied
Employee Benefits 1AS-19 |Applied
Accounting for Governmeni Grants and Disclosure of Govt Assistance I1AS-20 {Not Applicable
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates IAS-21 |Appiled
Borrowing Costs 1AS-23 | Not Applicable
Related Party Disclosures AS-24 |Applied
Accouniing and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans |AS-26 |Not Applicable
Separate Financial Statements 1AS-27 |Applied
Investments in Assaciates and Joint Yenture {AS.28 |Not Applicable
Interests in Joint Ventures 1AS-31 {Not Applicable
Financial instruments: Presentation $AS-32 | Applied with some departuse (note 2.1)
Earnings per Share IAS-33 INot Applicable
Interirn Financial Reporting IAS-34 |Not Applicable
impairment of Assels IAS-36 jApplied
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets IAS-37 |Applied
Intangible Assets 1AS-38 |Applied
Investment property IAS-40 {MNot Applicable
Agriculture |AS-41 |Not Applicable

In order to comply with certain specific rutes and regulations of Bangladesh Bank which are different to 1ASs/IFRSs,
some of the requirements specified in these IASs/IFRSs are not applied. Refer to note 2.1 for such recegnition and
measurement differences that are most relevant and material to the Bank.

Reason for departure from IFRS

Tne Central Bank of Bangladesh {Bangladesh Bank’), as reguiator of the banking industry, has issued a numbes of
circularsidirectives which are not consistent with the requirements specified in IAS/IFRS, as referred above. In such
cases, the Bank has followed reguiatory requiremants specified by Bangladesh Bank. Details are shown in Note 2.1.
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 financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective

Financial Reporting Couneil (FRC) has adopted following new standards and amendments to slandards duing the year
2017. All previously adopted reporting standards are consistently applied by the Bank as explained in Note 3.15.

A number of new slandards and amendments to standards are issuad but not yet effective for annual periods heginning
after 1 January 2021 and earlier application is permitted. However, the Bank has not adopted early the following new of
amended standards in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on
the financial statements of the Bank when they become be applicable.

i) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds pefore (ntended Use {Amendments to |AS 18},
iiy Reference to Conceptual Framework {Amendments {0 IFRS 3).

iy Classification of Liabllities as Current or Non-curtent {Amendments to IAS 1),

iv) IFRS 17 insurance Cantracls and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

Offseiting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is prasented in the palance sheel when, and only when,
the group has a legal right {0 set off the recognised amounts and it intends either 1o setfle on a net hasts or to realize
ihe asset and seitle the liability simuitanecusly.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permiftec under IFRSs, or for gains and losses afising
from a group of similar transactions such as in the group’s trading activity.

Segment reporting

The Bank has no identified operating segment and as such presentation of segmental reporiing is not made in the
financial statements as per [FRS 8,

Related party disclosures

A parly is refated to the company if:

{iy directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party contrals, is controlied by, or is under common
control with, the company; has ar interest in the company that gives it significant influence over tha company; or has

(ii) the party is an associate,

(iliy the parly is a joint venture;

{iv} the parly is a member of the key management persennel of ihe Company or its parent;

(v} the parly is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or {iv);

(vi) the parly is an entity that is controlled, jointly confrolled of significantly influenced by or for which significant vofing
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in () or {v} or

{vii) the party is & post-empioyment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the company, of of any entity that is a
related party of the company.

Details of the relaled party disclosures presented in note 34,

Events after reporting period

As per IAS 10 Evenls after Reporting Period events after ihe reporting period are those events, favorable and
unfavorable, that ocour between the end of the reporting pesiod and the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be jdentified:

{a) adjusting events after the reporting period {those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period); and

{b) non adjusting events after the reporting period (those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting
peried).

Detaits of the Events after reporting period presented in noie 38.
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Notes to the financial statements

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2022 2021
ums L Taka T \ Taka \
4 Cash
Cash in hang (Including foreign cusrency) 4.1 265,320,156 219,863,026
Baiance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank({s)
{ncluding foreign currency) 4.2 1,994,130,507 1,166,148,963
" 2.259,450,663, __1,386,111,989
4.1 Cash in hand
Local currency 265,173,268 249,367,402
Foreign currency 146,868 595,624
265,320,156 219,963,026
42 Balance with Bangladesh Bank and Its agent bank(s}
Local currency 1,323,819,383 672,763,158
Foreign currency 4.2.1 670,311,124 493,385,805
1,804,130,607 1,166,148,963
421 Foreign currency
Lien portion (statutory deposit with Bangladesh Bank against capital) 439,608,538 365,145,286
Non Lien portion 230,702,586 128,240,519
670,311,124 493,385,806
4a  As per section 33 of Bank Company Act, 1991 (amended up to 2013) & MPD circular No. 03 dated © Aprii 2020 issued

by Bangladesh Bank, the
reguirement is calcutated

which is two months back of the reporting menth (ie. CRR of Decempar 2022 is maintained on the basis of

ATDTL of Oclobar 2022), according issued on 19 January 2014 and 19 August 2019

respectively.

Bark has been maintaining 3.5% CRR on daily basis and 4%
on the basis of weekly average total demand and time liabilities (ATDTL) of a base menth

{o DOS Circular No. 01 and 26

i) Cash Reserve Reguirement (CRR) for Conventionat Banking

4% of average Demand and Time Liabilities

Redquired reserve
Actual reserve held
Surplus

Actual reserve held

i)

on bi-weekly basis, CRR

weekly

Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) for islamic Banking

4% of average Demand and Time Liabilities

Required reserve
Actuai reserve held
Surplus

Actual reserve held

552,116,367 356,384,460
1,131,352,282 479,604,028
579,236,915 124 219,568
8.20% 5.40%
177,761,610 170,633,477
195,252,560 194,838,751
17,490,950 24,305,274
4.39% 4.57%
/?sé
A
Hoe i
‘Q{x .
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decem ber 2022 (continued)

Uotes

2022 ‘
Taka

2021
Taka

4 Cash (Continued)

4bh  As per soction 33 of the Bank Company Act, 1991 (amended up to 2013) and MPD cir
2012 issued by Bangladesh Bank (effective from 1 February 2014), the Bank has
weekly average total demand and time liabilities (ATDTL) of a base month which is tw

cular no. 82 dated 10 December
neen maintaining 13% SLR on
o months back of the reporting

ronth (i.e. SLR of Decamber 2021 is based on weekly ATDTL of Oclober 2021), accerding to DOS Circular No. 01 &

26 issued on 19 January 2014 & 19 August 2019 respectively.
i) Statutory Liquidity Requirement (SLR} for Conventional Banking

13% of required Average Demand and Time Liabiiities
Required reserve
Actual reserve held
Surplus

Actual reserve held

Held for Statutory Liguidity Reguirement
Cash in hand

cxcess of daily reserve

Un-encumbared securities{HTM}
Un-encumberad securities(HFT)

iy Statutory Liquidity Requirement (SLR) for Islamic Banking

—

5.5% of required Average pemand and Time Liabilities
Required reserve

Actual reserve held

Surplus

Actual reserve held

Held for Statutory Liguidity Reguirement:
Cash in hand

Excess of daily reserve

Other efigible securities

Foreign currency used in BDT

5 Balance with other banks and financial institutions
in Bangladesh &1
Outside Bangladesh 5.2

54 in Bangladesh

Current accounts 51.1
Savings accounts 5.1.2
Mudaraba term deposit 51.3
Term deposit 5.14

51,1 Current accounts
Istami Bank Bangladash Limited
Trust Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank

34

1,794,378,193

1,154,999,495

1,683,860,073

6,910,477,093 5,986,878,808
5,116,098,900 5,831,879,313-
50.07% 78.64%
209,379,006 147,823,297
579,235,915 124,219,568
4,437,902,099 4,836,629,056

1,878,206,887

6,810.477,003

6,086,878,808

244,422,214 234,483,531
244,432,700 253,515,002
10,486 18,031,474
5.50% 5.95%
55,941,150 72,138,729
17,450,850 24,305,273
157,070,000 157,070,000
13,930,600 -
244,432,700 253,515,002
685,788,984 3,461,768,506
183,240,224 156,257,020

869,029,208

3,618,026 526

10,761,346

22,652,568
13,136,418 12,807,160
600,000,000 300,000,000
50,000,000 3,138,200,000
685,768,984 3,461,768,606
23,221 23,221
13,411,428 2,507,584
9,217,917 8,230,541
22,652,566 10,761,346




Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

5.2

5.a

5b

2022
Notes L Taka l

2021 AJ
Taka

Balance with other banks and financlal institutlons {Continued)
In Bangladesh (Continued}

Savings accounts

Trust Bank Limited 33,841 34,912
Dhaka Bank Limited 37,037 37,660
Prime Bank Limited 13,065,540 12,734,588
13,136,418 12,807,160
wMudaraba term deposit
Export Import Bank of Bangladesh Lid. 600,000,000 300,000,000
600,000,000 300,000,000
Term deposit
Midiand Bank Limited - 429,000,000
National Bank of Pakistan - 650,000,000
Mutual Trust Bank Limited - . 643,500,000
Prime Bank Limited - 429,000,000
Modhumoti Bank Limited 50,000,000 429,000,000
Trust Bank Limited - 557,700,000
50,000,000 3,158,200,000

Outside Bangladesh

Current account

Standard Chartered Bank, New York 174,255,868 150,164,980

Standard Chartered Bank, Mumbai 4,291,463 4,160,744

Bank Aifalah Limited, Karachi 936,632 777,980

Standard Chartered Bank, London 2,699,587 723,909

standard Chartered Bank, Frankfurt 1,026,807 401,121

standard Chartered Bank, Tokyo 29,868 28,286

83,240,224 156,257,020

Defails are shown in Annexure ilf

Maturity-wise groupings of batance with other banks and

financial institutions

On demand 219,029,208 179,825,526
3,438,200,000

Not more than 3 months 650,000,600
More than 3 months but less than 1 year -
Mare than 1 year but less than 5 years -
More than 5 years

869,029,208

Meney at call on short notice

Jamuna Bank Limited 190,000,000
Midland Bank Limited 490,000,000
“The City Bank Limited 600,000,000
iFIC Bank Limited 100,000,000
Prime Bank Limited 500,000,000
Modhumeti Bank Lid 450,000,000
NRB Bank Limited 100,000,000

3,618,025,526

2,430,000,000
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Motes to the financial statements as at and for

the year ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

6.1

6.a.2

6.b

Nofos 2022 2021

Taka Taka
investments
Government securities 6.1 6.279,804,026 £.872.174,301

Government securities

Treasury bills HFT
Traasury bills HTM
Treasury bonds HFT
Treasury bonds HTM*
Prize bonds

*Includes sukuk bond amounting Taka 157,070,000 (2021: 157,070,000).

investments classified as per Bangladesh Bank circular
Held-fortrading (HF T} securities 6.a.1
Held-to-maturity (HTM] securities 6.a.2

Held-for-trading (MFT) securities
Treasury bills

Treasury bonds

Prize bonds

Held-to-maturity (HTM) securities
Treasury bills
Treasury bonds

6,279,804,026 6,872,174,301

1,684,135,916
4,595,668,110

668,052,338 -
192,790,200 -
005,987,578 1,878,206,887
4,402,877,910 4,993,808,414
96,000 159,000
6,279,804,026 6,872174,301

1,878,365,887
4,993,808,414

6,279,804,026

6,872,174,301

588,052,338 .
995,987,578 4,878,206,887
96,000 159,000

1,684,135,918

4,878,365,887

192,790,200
4,402,877,910

4,993,.808414

4,596,668,110

4,993,808414

Except two treasury bond amouniing Taka 350,621,680 the above HTN securities are lien with Bangladesh Bank for

capiial purpose.
Maturity wise groupings of investment

Repayabte On demand

Nol more than 3 months

More than 3 months but not more than 1 year
More than 1 year but not more than 5 years
More than 5 years

36

96,000
756,758,085
741,928,666

3,473,882,107
1,307,139,168

159,000

1,363,342,451
3,832,881,175
1,675,791,675

6,279,804,026

6,872,174,30%




Notes to the flnancial statements as at and for {he year ended 31 December 2022 [continued)

74

7.1.14

7.1.4.2

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

2022 2021
r Notes Jr Taka J Taka J

Loans and advances

Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 7.1 17.390,352,770

6,051,495

12,626,451,010
3,652,244

Bills purchased and discounted 7.2

17,396,404,265 12,629,103,254

Loans, cash credit, overdrafts efc.

In Bangladesh 7.1.1 17,390,352,770

12,626,451,010

Outside Bangiadesh

In Bangladesh

Convertional Banking 7.1.1.1 13,434,523,226
lelamic Banking 7142 3,655,829,544

17,380,352,770 12,626,451,010

9,355,670,637
3.269.780,373

17,390,352,770 12,625,451,010

Conventional Banking

Current finance 5,631,419,244 3,303,085,923
Term finance 7.169,011,488 5,661,183,284
Agriculture finance 294,013,486 242,986,167
Staff loan 61,401,451 65,038,465
Finance against EDF 331,615,448 164,079,061
Loan against trust receipts 47,062,109 18,327,747

13,434,523,226

9,355,670,637

|slamic Banking

Murabaha {L.PO) 3,289,272,735
Trust receipts 31,018,658
Advance against Murabaha -
Finance against EDF 70,813,151
Spot murabaha 564,625,000

3,228,397,453

472,282
40,910,638

3,955,828,544

3,269,780,373

Bills purchased and discountecd

Payable in Bangladesh 5,051,495 3,852,244
Payable outside Bangladesh - -
6,051.495 3,682,244
Maturity-wise grouplng of loans and advances
Repayable on demand 542,327,320 2,505,783,683
Mot more than 3 monihs 14,131,593,08C 5,043,846,262
More than 3 months but not more than 1 year 2,163,792,111 4,431,372,021
More than 1 yaar but not mere than 5 years 520,957,723 504,220,476
More Than 5 years 37,734,031 145,680,812

17,398,404,265 12,629,103.254

Loans and advances on the basis of significant concentration

Advances to Chief executive, other Senior executives and ciher Cfficers 81,401,451
Industrial loans and advances 17,535,002 814

65,038,485
12,564,064 769

17,396,404 265 12,629,103,254

Loans and advances allowed to each customer exceeding-10% of Bank's total capital

Total cutstanding amount lo such customers at end of the year (06 Cuslomer) 4,620,118,836
Amount of classified loans and advances therein Nil
Measures taken for recovery Not Applicable

1,746,946,144
Nil

Nat Applicable
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7 Loans and advances {Continued}

7.6 industry-wise classification of loans and advancesfinvestments

2022

2021

" of Total Loan

BDT

o, of Total Loan

BDT

Agri Business 8.76% 1,624,082,941 10.84% 1,343,888,862
Automobile dealers 0.58% 100,672,003 0.91% 145,301,658
Cement 3.00% 522,106,435 5,03% 634,918,636
Cheamicals 3.20% 557,330,833 1.11% 139,740,308
Financiat Institutions & Mfls 9,28% 1,614,140,528 11.02% 1,391,007,024

Food & Personal Care Products 6.89% 1,198,084,804 9.80% 1,249,198,178

Glass & Ceramics 017% 29,523,968 0.23% 28,473,013

Leather & Tanneries 1.47% 202,846,667 1.62% 204,255,606
manufacluring & sale of Domestic Appliances 6.37% 1,107,851,001 9.18% 1,158,787,622

Metal & Allied 23.37% 4,066,200,242 14.30% 1,426,457,528

il & Gas Marketing Campanies 3.33% 579,017,314 2.42% 305,536,428
OthersiMiscellanecus 4.26% 741,265,722 2.57% 324,467,010

Paper & Beard 0.00% - 0.40% 51,028,206
Pharmaceuticals 7.16% 1,244,945,541 7.78% 982,293,339

Power Generation & Distripution- Non GoP 0.00% - 2.30% 291,071,389

Printing & Publishing 0.41% 70,695,292 6.62% 78,362,868

Reaal Estate/Consiruction 0.25% 43,048,537 0.18% 23,057,827

Refinery 0.16% 27,781,573 0.22% 27,781,573

Services 3.29% 573,148,291 5.683% 710,731,263

Textile Composite / Garments Manufacturing 2.27% 395,155,610 3.78% 477,676,439

Texiile Spinning 6.01% 1,046,028,766 7.561% 948,159,457

Texlile Weaving 0.60% 103,978,772 0,49% 51,425,448
Tobacco 0.00% - 0.00% -

Trading 0.46% 79,716,858 1.01% 427,538,498
Transpoit 0.65% 113,514,954 0.10% 12,671,540

Jute Milis 3.57% 624,200,000 0.00% -
vanaspali & Allied Industries 4.80% 834,269,813 4.07% 514,373,536
100.00% 17,396.404,266 100,00% 12,629,103,254

7.7 Geagraphical location-wise toans and advances/investments
2022 2021
%, of Total Loan BDT % of Total Loan BDT

Dhaka Division 71.74% 12,480,263,711 81.88% 10,340,132,723
Ghattogram Divigion 27.80% 4,836,633,847 17.39% 2,195 784,034,

Sylhet Division 0.48% 79,606,707 0.74% 93,186,497

100% 17.,395,404,265 100% 12,629,103,254

During {his year Tk, 997,356 has been disbursed as CMSME Lean under Bang!

adesh Bank Cluster Financing Pregram.

7.8 Grouping of foans and advances as per classification rules of Bangladesh Bank
2022 2021
%, of Total Loan BDT o/, of Total Loan 80T

Status
Unclassified:
standard including staif loan 98.04% 17,056,046,069 97.17% 12,272,155,678
Special Mention Account [SMA) 2.00% - 0.01% 1,697 541

98.04% 17,056,046,069 97.19% 12,273,863,219
Classifled:
Substandard 0.10% 16,737,118 0.13% 16,143,791
Doubliu! 0.39% 68,058,520 0.00% -
Bad or loss 1.47% 255 662,558 2.69% 339,106,244

1,86% 340,358,196 2.81% 365,250,035

100.00% 17,396,404,265
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7

7.8

7.41

Loans and advances {Contlnued)

Particulars of required provision for loans and advancesfinvestmenis

2022 2021
Base for Required Base for Required
Provision Provision Provision Provision
Unclassifted
A% unclassified loans {other than SME loan, 46,223,845,821 462,239,459 11,373,727,478 113,737,275
Agricultural ioan and special mention account)
Agricultural finance 204,013,486 2,840,135 264,786,167 2,647,862
SME finance 555,531,993 1,685,054 633,642,033 L 2,008,932
Special Mention Account {SMA} - - 1,697,544 4,244
17,073,491,300 166,764,648 12,273,863,218 118,398,313
Classified ‘
Substandard 16,355,048 817,752 2,421,562 121,078
Doubtful 47,205,485 22,808,113 - -
Bad or loss 116,026,763 116,026,763 168,886,035 168,966,035
179,690,298 139,652,828 171,407,604 169,107,113
17.253,081,696 306,417,276 12,445,260,823 287,505,426
Total provision mainfained 193,548,999 150,520,279
Surplus provision 87,131,723 63,014,853

Particulars of loans and advances/investments

i}
i}
i)

iv)

i)

vii)

viil)

ix)

X)
(a)

{0}

(©)
Xi)

Loans considered good in respect of which the barking company is fully secured;

Leans considered good against which the banking company holds no security
other than the deblor's personal guarantee;

Loans congidered good secured by the personal undertakings of one or more
parties in addition to the perscnal guaraniee of the debtor;

Loans advessely classified; provision not maintained there against;

Loans due by directors or officers of he banking company of any of thase gither
separately of jointly wilh any other person.

Loans due from cempanies or firms in which the directors of the banking
company have interesls as directors, partners or managing agenis or in the case
of private companies as members;

aaximum total amaunt of Advances including temporary advance made at any
time during ihe year to directors or managers of officars of the banking
companies or any of them either separately or jointly with any other person;
Maximum tofal amount of advances, including temporary advances granled
during the year fo the companies or firms in which the directors of the banking
company have interests as directors, partners or managing agents or in the case
of private companies as members

Due from Banking Companies;

Amount of Classified loan/investment on which
charged:

Movement of Classified loans and advances
Opening balance

Increase/(decrease) during the year

Closing balance

Provislon kept against loan classified as bad/loss on the date of balance sheet
Amount of inlerestprofit charged in suspense account

Loans written off

- Cutrent Year

- Cumulative to-date

- Amount of written off loans for which lawsuit was filed

Interest/Profit has not been

Maturity grouping of blis discounted and purchased

Payable within 1 month

Over 1 month but less than 3 months
Over 3 months but less than & months
& months or more

Loan file compliance regarding updated Financtal Statements and DVC

According to FRC lelter no. 178IFR

2022
Taka

|

2021
Talka

[ G |

17,191,207,431

12,629,103,254

17,111,207,431

12,629,103,254

64,401,451 65,038,465
61,401,451 66,038,465
340,358,165 355,260,035
r 355,250,035)J r 339,888,725
(14,891,839 15,361,310
340,358,196 355,250,038
160,831,445 168,086,035
48,767,481 58,626,039
80,246,367 -
135,088,559 54,842,182
135,088,569 54,842,182
6,051,496 3,552,244
5,051,495 1,652,244

35 for loans and advances sanchionedfrenewad from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 is as follows:

C/APR2021/21(7) dated 7 Dacember 2021, the complianca status ¢f BRPD circular no. 4 and

- - - 5 Y -
No. of BRPD Circular 4 and 35 applicable Financial Financial % of DVC % of without DVC
horro- tor no. of borrower Statements Statements

wer : including DVC excluding OVC
f 229 56 55 c 100% 0%
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Notes

o the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2

022 (continued)

8.2

8.3

2.1

9.2

9.3

2022 2021
‘ Note Taka l L Taka
Right of use assets
Cost
Balance at 1 January 241,490,088 209,494,415
Additions 77,450,310 133,038,302
Adjustments (69,729,886) {101,942 629)
249,210,512 241,490,088
Accumulated depreciation
Batance at 1 January 132,775,126 142,729,945
Deprecialion 86,729,479 91,348,413
Adjustments (68,511,889) {101,303,232)

Carrying amounts

The cost of fully depreciated assets that are still In use by the Bank

Motorvehicles

Gomputer and accessofies
Office equipment
Furnitures and fixtures
Leasehold improvement

Other assets

Income generating other assets

Mon-income generating other assefs

Stationery, stamps, printing materials in stock etc.

Advance rent and advertisement

Incomefprofit raceivables 9.1
Branch adjustment account 9.2
Security deposits

Renovation, development and prepaid expenses

Deferrad {ax assets 12.7
Capltal Work in Progress

Others 9.3
Intangible asset (Software) 9.4

Incamelprofit receivables

On Treasury bill, bonds, preference shares, etc.
Deposit with financial institution

Branch adjustment account

150,992,716 132,775,126

98,217,796 108,714,962
16,027,000 16,027,000
131,003,823 120,196,066
53,048,889 53,770,241
38,438,170 37,978,185
74,014,349 72,606,889
312,532,231 300,478,381
4,743,252 5,321,640
83,755,820 120,939,325
2,609,115 2,979,115
11,245,111 10,268,469
100,121,173 91,820,597
8,346,030 -
1,518,998,868 1,567,264,534
282,918 549,069

1,730,002,287

4,799,142,749

81,926,862 113,006,102
1,828,958 7,833,223
83,755,820 120,839,325

All inter branch reconciliation have been made up to 31 December 2022, There is no significant item outstanding,

that is not responded, for more than 3 months.

Others
Advance income tax 9.3.1

Receivable from Bangladesh Bank
Miscellaneous

41

1,484,629,027
35,632,929
(1,263,088)

1,298,004,852
268,595,706
563,976

1,518,998,868

1,667,264,634




Notes to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decembe

v 2022 {continued)

9.3.1

9.4

10

10.1

10.1.14

10.1.2

Other assets (Continued)

Advance income (ax
Balance as at 1 January
Paid during the year

Adjustments made during the year
Balance as at 31 December

Intangible asset (Software)

Cost

Balance at 1 January
Additions

Disposals

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January
Depreciation

Disposals

Carrying amounts

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions

and agents

In Bangladesh
Outside Bangladesh

In Bangladesh

Calt borrowing
Term horrowing

Call borrowing

The Premier Bank Limited
IFIC Bank Limited

Agrani Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Limited
Sonall Bank Limited

Term borrowing

Modhumoti Bank Limited

Midland Bank Limited

IDLC Finance Limited

The Premier Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Limited

Prima Bank Limited

United Commercial Bank Limiled
Trust Bank Limited

Bangladesh Bank - EDF Financing
Bangladesh Bank - Stimulus Fund

2022 2021
Note Taka Taka
1,298,004,852 1,350,066,433
186,624,175 125,069,693
1,484,629,027 1,476,926,126
- 178,921,274
1,484,629,027 1,298,004,8562
34,337,198 34,337,198
34,337,198 34,337,198
33,788,129 33,163,843
266,151 624,286
34,084,280 33,788,128
282,918 540 069
10.1 1,548,041,717 2,477 748,075
1,548,041, 717 2,477,748,07%
10.1.1 - 750,000,000
10.1.2 1,548,041.717 1,727,748,075
1,548,041,717 2 477,748,075
- 300,000,000
450,000,000
- 750,000,000
450,000,000 -
200,000,000 -
500,000,000 .
- 200,000,000
- 400,000,000
- 280,000,000
- 300,000,000
- 343,200,000
397,941,668 203,847,729
100,049 700,346
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1,548,041,717

1,727,748,078




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

10

10.2

10.3

1

11141

2022
Taka

o]

BRI

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions
and agents (Continued)

secured and unsecured borrowings from
other banks, financiat institutions and agents

Secured Borrowing

Unsecured Barrowing 1,548,041,717

2 477,748,075

4,548,041.717

2,477,748,075

Miaturity grouping of borrowings from other banks,
financial institutions and agents

Repayable on demand
Rapayable within 1 month

Over 1 month but within 6 months
Over 6 months but within 1 year

1,246,693,144

2,312,559,369

301,348,573 40,141,408
- 125,047,298
1,548,041,717 2,477,748,075

Deposits and other accounts

Current accounts and other accounts 11.1 2,020,283,680
Bilis payabie 11.2 620,554,364
Savings bankfMudaraba savings bank deposits 11.3 7,854,260,422
Fixed deposits/Mudaraba fixed deposits 11.4 10,332,846.381

1,877,300,739

509,482,685
7.321,848,235
5,933,664 432

20,827,944,847

Current accounts and other accounts

15,642,296,091

Current deposits 1,165,667,229 997,690,677
Adfalah Uduog Current Account 469,234,090 378,493,808
Foreign cusrency deposits 235,322,347 400,669,376
Sundry deposits 11.1.1 150,060,014 100,446,878
2,020,283,680 1,877,300,739

Sundry deposits
Margin Accounts - Local Currency 62,519,470 92,839,178
Margin Accounts - Foreign Currency 87,520,723 7,563,419
Others 19,821 44,281
150,060,014 100,446,878

Bills payable

Payment order - Inside Bangiadash 620,272,604 509,221,370
Demand draft payable - Inside Bangladesh 276,760 261,315
5,000 -

Unclaimed PO - Inside Bangladesh
Unclaimed DDITT - inside Bangladash

620,554,364

Savings bank/Mudaraba savings bank deposits

Savings deposits 2,072,767,725
Alfalah Savings Plan (ASP) 118,389,250
Special Notice Deposits (SND) 2,806,717,449
Alfalah Satary Account (ASA) 48,977,366

25,230,985

Alfalah Rising Star (ARS)
Alfalah Pramium Plus (APP)
Monthly Premiurn Deposit

1,125,082,624
1,667,115,023

509,482,683

2,012,162,910
118,492,745
2,137,755,886
47,425,559
26,405,310
1,248,146,180
1,731,459,635

7.854,260,422
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1

1.8

11.5.2

Note 2022 2021
Taka Taka
Deposits and other accounts (Continued}
Fixed deposits/Vudaraba fixed deposits
Fixed Deposit (FDR} 7,674,216,123 3,754,222,012
Mudaraha Term Deposit (MTOR) 2,658,630,258 2,179,442,420
40,332,846,381 _ 5933,664.432
Deposits from banks and others
Intar-bank deposits 11.5.1 1,058,125,625 1,016,241,079
Vosiro Deposit 11.5.2 127,009,782 66,891,581
Customner and other deposits 19,642,809,540 14,658,463,431
20,827,944 847 15,642,296,091
inter-bank deposits
Jamuna Bank Limited 23,694 23,901
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 450,589,475 -
AB Bank Limited 14,675 15,810
Prime Bank Limited 14,759,601 14,801,177
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited 51,932 31,646,246
Shahjalal tslami Bank Limited 2,758,754 2,760,386
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited 11,984 425,245,956
The City Bank Limited 2,744,547 2,427,081
Trust Bank Limited 585,451,443 540,011,925
Bank Asia Limited 1,719,420 8,597

1,058,125,528

Vostro deposit

1,016,941,079

Banklstami Pakistan Limited 56,543,597 10,891,608
Gank Alfalah Limited, Karachi {Conventionat) 11,204,375 24,799,693
Bank Alfalah Limited, Karachi {Islamic) 59,261,810 31,200,280
127,009,782 66,891,581

Maturity grouping of deposits
Repayabie On demand 1,157,758,033 872,703,900
1,106,841,721 827,869,258

Repayable within 1 month

Over 1 month but within 6 months
Qver B months but within 1 year 2,108,072,615
Ower 1 year but within 5 years 9,215,075,545
Over 5 years but within 10 years -
10 years or more

7,240,196,932

4,718,336,488
1,327,761,770
7,895,624,675

20,827,944,847

15,642,296,091

As per Bank Company Act 1991, Saclion 35 and BRPD circular letter no. 10 dated 12 September 2018, if any
meney or valuable assel (except dapostts from Government, miner or litigation) is unclaimed for ten years or
above as of 31 December every year, a three months’ notice will be given to depositors concarmed. Based on the

response from the concemed depositors by following

three months, amount will be paid to them othaerwise

unclaimed deposit will be deposiled to Bangladesh Bank by 30 April 2023. The bank does not have any such
deposit to be reported as 10 years and above unclaimed deposit amount as on 31 December 2022 (cut off basis)

to Bangladesh Bank,

a4




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decemb

of 2022 (continued)

2022 2021
Note l ‘ Taka Taka

12 Other liabilities
Provision for loans and advancesfinvestmenis 12.1 393,308,530 350,090,556
Provision for off-balance sheet expasures 12.2 13,011,771 50,541,771
intarest suspense account 12.3 48,767,491 58,626,038
Special General Provision - Covid 19 240,469 429,723
Provision for taxation 12.4 1,793,152,899 1,525,152,899
Accrued expenses 28,288,606 16,023,435
Interest payable on deposit and borrowings 12.5 173,794,738 75,082,467
tUnearned profit on Murabaha 47,866,350 54,678,256
Accounts payable - {Locker Securily Deposit) 650,000 654,000
vithholding tax on inferest on daposits 15,065,822 3,084,599
Withholding 1ax payable 9,372,755 7,795,329
VAT payable 3,442,334 2,981,185
Provision for audit and consultancy fees 2,640,375 2,147,125
Provision for Salaries & Allowance 19,895,398 22,702,163
Payable to Shamil bank's head office™ 79,052,645 79,052,645
Excise duty payable 689,150 1,375,420
NPSB, Qoash & BACH Settlement Account 327,467 173,850
Advance cammission on Letter of Guarantee (L/G) 293,082 319,402
Charity fund account 5,936,418 6,139,792
Provision for Rebate on Good Barrowers 47,700,000 47,700,000
Miscellaneous Provision 73,545,648 9,545,648
Branch adjustment Account 9.2 - -
Provision for special CSR - -
Start-Up Fund 7,377,706 5,997,180
Lease Kabilities 12.6 85,754,120 77,255,001
Miscelianeous 1,843,011 705,544

2,852 016,872 2,398,254,029

*Payable to Shamif Bank Ltd. is related to an obligation to pay by Bank Alfalah, Bangladesh Operations {0 Shamil
Bank. The reason is when Shamil Bank was acquired by Bank Alfalah in 2005, Banl Alfalah paid an amount less
than the required acquisition cost because there was tax claims by NBR against Shamil Bank. If the claim goes in
favor of Shamil Bank then the amount will be paid to shamit Bank in opposite case the amount wiil be paid to NBR.

12,4 Provision for loans and advancesfinvestments
A. General
Provisions held at the beginning of the year 118,048,748 102,395,332
Provision made during the year 48,997,684 16,653,416
Reversal of provision - -
Provisions held at the end of the year 167,946,332 118,948,748
B. Specific
Provisions held at the beginning of the year 231,141,808 233,667,886
Wirite off during the year 67,056,797 -
Recovery of written off bad debts - -
Specific provision for the year 73,453,868 286,540
Reversal of provisicn (12,176,682) (2,712,618}
Met Charge 1o Profit and Loss Account 61,277,187 (2,426,078}
Provisions held at the end of the year 225,362,198 231,141,808
Total proviston on loans and advancesfinvestmenis 393,308,530 350,080,556

12.2  Provision for off-balance sheet exposures
Provisions held at the baginning of the year 50,641,771 60,041,771
Provision made during the year - -
Reversal of provision (37,530,000} {9,500,000)
Provisfons held at the end of the year 13,014,771 50,541,771
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

i2

12.3

12.3.1

124

12.5

12.6

Other liabilities {Continued)

interest suspense account

Balance at the beginning of the year

Amount ransfarrad to Intarest Suspense Account during the year
Amount recoverad in Inferast Suspense Account during the year
Amount wrilten off during the year

Balance at the end of the year

interest/profit suspense and compensation suspense

Interest/profit suspanse
Compensation suspense

Provision for taxation

Balance al the baginning of the year
Provision made during the year 33.1

Adjustments made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Corporate 1ax position of the Bank has been shown in Annexure V.

Interest pavable on deposit and borrowings

Profitfinterest payabte on
Savings Deposit
Borrowings from financial institution

thterest payable on

30 days term deposi

90 days term deposit

180 days term deposit

360 days term deposit
Broken Period term deposit
2 years term deposit

3 years term deposit

Lease liabilities

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions/Renewals/Amendmends/(Terminations} - Net
Borrowing Cost

Payments

As at December 31

Maturity grouping of lease liabilities

Currant Lease Liabilities
Non Current Lease Liabiliies
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Note 2022 2021
Taka Taka

58,626,039 56,417 525

4,574,116 2,474,290

(1,200,430} {765,776)

(13,232,233) -

48,767,491 58,626,039

48,767,491 60,334,553

48,767,491 60,334,553

1,525,152,899
268,000,000

1,567,074,173
137,000,000

1,793,152,899

1,704,074,173
178,921,274

1,793,152,899 1,525,152,899

41,470,355 15,601,776
3,163,941 1,068,754
44,634,296 16,758,530
9,938,803 1,859,379
28,699,146 8,534,430
14,272,009 4,505,783
49,255,441 25,774,510
25,469,804 16,655,935
624,551 466,622
900,688 527,278
129,160,442 58,323,937
173,794,738 75,082,467
77,255,001 54,127,355
78,668,307 132,745,370
5,127,449 4,832,529

(75,296,638) (114,450,253)
85,764,120 77,255,001
66,254,629 68,286,147
19,498,401 5,968,854
85,754,120 77,255,001
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Note

13

13.1

s to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)
2022 2021
Taka Taka
Pald up capita! {Fund from head office)
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,454,035,286 4,449,788,025
Currency translation difference 74,463,252 4,247,261
Balance at the end of the year 4,528,498,538 4 454,035,286

Capital Adequacy Ratio - As per BASEL-l

To cope up with the international best practices and to make the Bank's capital shock absorbent ‘Guidelines on
Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) for banks’ (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework in line with BASEL-1}) was
introduced from 1 January 2009 as a parallel run with BRED Circutar No. 10, dated 25 November 2002 (BASEL-).
At the end of parallel run, BASEL-Il regime started from 1 January 2010 and the guidelines on RBCA came fully
into force with its subsequent supplementsfrevisions. After that Bangladesh Bank issued ‘Guidelines on Risk Based
Capital Adequacy {RBCA) for panks' {Revised Regutatory Capital Framework in fine with BASEL-[II) vide its BRFD
Circular 18 dated 21 December 2014 that BASEL-Ill reporting start from January 2015 and full implementation
started from January 2019. Instructions regarding Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR), Adequate Capital and
Disclosure requirement as stated in the guidelines had to he followed by all scheduled banks for the purpose of
statutory compliance. BASEL-1Il framework has three main components referred to as pillars:

i Pilar | addresses minimunt capitat requirement;

ii. Piltar Il elaboraies the process for assessing the overall capital adequacy atigned with risk profile of a bank as
well as capital growth ptan; and

iit. Finally, Pillar |1l gives a frarework of public disclosure on the position of a bank's risk profiles, capital adequacy,
and risk managemsnt system.

Basel-llt reforms are the response of Basel Committee an Banking Supervision (BCES) to improve the banking
sector's abilily to absorb shocks arising from financiat and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the
risk of spill over from the financial sector to the real economy. "Basel-1ll: A glebal regulatory framework for more
resilient banks and banking systems” (known as Basel Il capital regulations) in December 2010. Basel-lll reforms
strengthen the bank-level i.e., micro prudential reguiation, with the intention to raise the resilience of individual
banking institutiens in periods of stress. Besides, the reforms have a macro prudential focus also, addressing
system wide risks, which can bulld up across the banking sector, as well as the pro-cyclical amplification of these
risks over time. These new global regulatory and supervisory standards mainly addressed the following areas:

a) Raise the quality and level of capital to ensure banks are better able ta absorb josses on both a geoing concern
and a gone concern basis;

b} Increase the risk coverage of the capital framawork;

¢) Introduce leverage ratio io serve as a backstop to the risk-hased capital measure;

d) Raise the standards for the supervisory review process (Piltar 2); and

e) Public disclosures (Piliar 3) etc.

To ensure smocth transition to Basel-1ll, appropriate transitional arrangements have been provided for mesting the
minimum Basel |1 capital ratios, full reguiatory adjustments to the components of capital etc. In 2020, banking
indlustry has embark on the full-fledged implementation of Basal ill.

We have fully complied with all the directives provided by the Central bank from time to time, starting from Pillar |, i
and Il reporting requirements to periodic Stress Testing activity etc.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 D

ecember 2022 {(continued)

13
13.1

Paid up capital (Fund from head office) (Continued)
Capital Adequacy Ratio - As per BASEL-ll (Continued)

GCommeon Equity Tier-1 {Going Concern Capital)

Head Office Fund

Non-repayable Share Premium Account

Statutory Reserve

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Dividend equalizatien fund

Minority Interest in Subsidiaries

Actuarial gainfloss (Actuarial galn/loss kept in hooks in Bangladesh for
Foreign Banks)

Non-repatriable interest-free funds from Head Office for the purpese of
acquisition of property and held In a separate accouni and have the ability
to absorh losses regardiess of their source {Applicable for Foreign Banks)

Others (if any item approved by Bangladesh Bank)
Sub-total

Regulatory Adjustments

Shortfall in provisions required against Non Performing Loans (NPLs}
Shortfall in provisions reguired against investment in shares

Remaining deficit on account of tevaluation of investments in securities
after netting off from any other surplus on the securities

Goodwill and all ather Intangible Assets

Deferrad Tax Assets (DTA)

Dsfined benefit pension fund assets

Gain on sale related to securitization transactions

lavestment in own CET-1 Instruments/Shares (as per Para 3.4.7 of Basel
IH Guidelines}

Reciprocal Crossholdings in the GET-1 Capitat of Banking, Financial and
tnsurance Entities

Any investment exceeding the approved limit under section 28 ka(1) of the
Banking Companies Act, 1881 (50% of Investment)

Investments in subsidiaries which are not consolidated (50% of
Investment}

Others if any

Sub-total

Total common equity Tier-1 capital

Additional Tier-1 Capital

Non-cumulative iredeemable preference shares

Instruments issued by the banks that meet the qualifying criteria for AT1
(as specified in Annex-4 of Basel [li Guidelines)

Minarity Interest i.e. AT jssued by consolidated subsidiaries fo third
parties as specified in Annex-4 of Basel 1l Guidelines (for consolidated
reporting)

Head Office horrowings in foreign currency by foreign banks operating in
Bangladesh for inctusion in Additional Tier 1 capital which comply with the
regutatery requirements as specified in Annex-4 of Basel i1l Guidelines
{Applicable for Foreign Banks}

Any other item specifically allowad by BB from time to time for inclusion in
Additionat Tier 1 Capitai (Applicable for Foreign Banks)

Others {if any item approved by Bangladesh Bank)

Subtotal
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2022 \ 2021 ‘l
Taka Taka

4,628,498,538 4,454,035,286

1,398,461,164

1,332,802,132

5,861,300,670

5,852,496,450

282,918 549,069
100,121,173 91,820,597
100,404,091 92,369,666

5,760,896,57¢ 5,760,126,784




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

2022 2021
Taka [ Taka

13 Paid up capital {Fund from head office) {Continued)
43.1 Capital Adequacy Ratio - As per BASEL- (Confinued)

Regulatory Adjustments:

Investment in own AT-1 Instrument/Share {(as per Para 3.4.7 of Basel lli - -
Guidelines)

Reciprocal crossholdings in the AT-1 Capital of Banking, Financial and - -
insurance Entities
Others if any
Total Additional Tier-1 Capital Available - -
Maximurn Limit of Additional Ties-1 Capital {AT-1 capital can be maximum

ug to 1.5% of the total RWA or 33.33% of CET1, whichever is higher) -

Excess Amount over Maximum Limit of AT-1

Subtotal - -
Total Admissible Additiona! Tier-1 Capital 5,760,896,579 5,760,126,784

Tier-2 Capital (Going Goncern Capital)

General Provision 181,198,672 169,820,242
All Gther preference shares - -
Subordinated debt/instruments issued by the banks that meet the qualifying

criteria for Tier 2 capital (as per Annex 4 of Basel il Guidelines) - -

Minority Interest i.e. Tier-2 issued by consolidated subsidiaries to third
parties {for consolidated reporting only}

Head Office {HO) borrowings in foreign currency received that meet the
criteria of Tier 2 debt capital (Appiicable for Fareign Banks)

Revaluation Reserves as on 31 December, 2014 (50% of Fixed Assets and
Securities & 10% of Equities)

Others (if any item approved by Bangtadesh Bank} - -
Sub-total 181,198,572 169,920,242
Regulatory Adjustmentis

Revaluation Reserves for Fixed Assels, Securittes & Equily Securities
(foliow Phase-in deductions as per Basel lll Guidelines}

Investment in own T-2 Instruments/Shares (as per Para 3.4.7 of Basel lli
Guidelines)

Reciprocal crossholdings in the T-2 Capital of Banking, Financial and
Insurance Entities

Any invesiment exceeding the approved fimit under section 26 ka(1) of the

Bank Company Act, 1991 {50% of Investment) ’
Invesiments in subsidiaries which are not consolidated {50% of Invastment) )

Others if any -
Total Tier-2 Capital Available 181,198,572 169,920,242
Maximum Limit of Tier-2 Capitai (Tier 2 capital can be maximum up 1o 4.0%

of the total RWA or §8.89% of CET1, whichever is higher) 5,122,088,121 5,112,360,157
Excess Amount over Maximum Limit of T-2 -
Total Admissible Tier-2 capital 181,198,572 169,920,242

Total Capital 5,942,095,151 5,930,047,026

Risk Weighted Assets

Credit Risk:

On-Balance Sheet 10,263,707,262 8,338,250,633
Off-Balance Sheet 112,652,078 764,671,996
Subtotal 10,376,359,340 9,102,931,629
Market Risk 218,166,054 507,633,454
Operational Risk 1,609,755,408 1,628,833,033
Total Risk Weighted Assets 12,204,280,802 41,239,398.116
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Dece

mber 2022 (continued)

13
13.1

Paid up capital (Fund from head office) (Coniinued)
Capital Adequacy Ratio - As per BASEL-lI (Continued)

Regquired Minimum Gommon Equity Tier-1 Capital Ratio
(4.5% of the totai RWA)

Required Capital Conservation Buifer (2.5% of the lolal RWA)

Required Minimum Common Eguity Tier-1 Capital Ratio p

Conservation Buffer (7.0% of total RWA)
Required Tier 1 Capital (6.0% of RWA)
Required tolat capital (10% of RWA)

Required total capital plus Capital Conservation Buifer
(12.5% of RWA) (A)

Minimum capitat requirement (B)

Reaquired capital (higher of A &B)

Surplus (Totai capital - required capital)

Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Common Equity Tier-1 {Against standard of minimum 6%)
Total Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio

Mininium CRAR %
Surplus/ (Deficiency) %
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2022 2021
Taka Taka
549,192,636 505,772,815
305,107,020 280,984,953
ius Capital 854,299,656 786,757,868
732,256,848 674,363,887

1,220,428,080

1,123,939,812

1,525,635,10C

1,404,924,764

4,000,000,000

4.000,000,000

4,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

1,942,095,151

1,930,047,026

47.20%
48.69%
12.50%
36.19%

51.25%
52.76%
12.50%
40.26%




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 {continued)
2022 20214
] Notes Taka Taka

Ravaluation reserve arises from the revaluation of Treasury bills and bonds (HFT and HTM) in accordance with the DOSs
circular no. 5 dated 26 May 2008 and DOS{SR) 1153/120/2010 dated 8 December 2010.

14 Revaluation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 87,767,757 52,635,225
Add: Addition during the year - 35,132,632
Less: Adjustment during the year (85,814,727} -

1,853.030 87,767,757

16 Surplus in profit and loss account

1,398,461,164 1,372,321,167

Balance at the beginning of the year
(202,331,084} {296,511,254)

Profit Transfer to Head Office

Net (lossyprofii for the year 138,052,578 325,910,365
Transferred to Start-Up Fund (1,380,626) (3,259,104)
Balance at the end of the year 1,332.802,132 1,398.461,164
18 Letters of guaraniees
Balance far which the Bank is contingently liable in respect of
guarantee issued favoring:
Directors - -
Government 312,091,450 238,086,047
Banks and other financial institutions 53,489,538 155,978,740
Others 57,797,883 56,884,956
423,378,871 450,949,743
17 lrravocable letters of credit
Usance 22,664,379 540,292,312
Sight 214,527,791 546,530,001
2371921470 1,186,822,313
18 Income statement
Income

1,539,487,006 1,245,512,156
25,295,903 29,470,907

Interest, discaunt and similar income

Fes, commission and brokerage

Gains loss losses arising from dealing securities
Gains less josses arising from investment securities - -
Gains less losses arising fram dealing in foreign currencies 181,655,931 95,431,901
Income from non-banking assets
Other operating income

22,592,433 15,496,235
1,769,031,273 1,385,911,198

Expenses

Interest, fee and commission 674,262,023 338,796,077
Losses on loans and advances - -
Adminisirative expenses 473,221,884 446,654,547
Other operating expenses 44,522,606 41,660,864
Depreciation on banking assets 406,717,240 113,260,364

4,298,723,753 940,371,952
Operating profit 470,307,520 445 639,247
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Motes to the financlal statem

ents as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

20

2004

20.2

203

Interest incomelprofit on investments

Interest on loans and advances
Share of profit from financing and discounting
Interestfprofit on piacements with banks

Interest on loans and advances

Current finance
Term finance

Trust receipt

Staff financing
Finance against EDF
Agriculturs finance
Foreign bill discount
Local bill discounted

Share of profit from financing and discounting

Profit on diminishing musharkah
Murabaha financing - LPO
Profit on bill discounted

Profit against EOF

Murabaha inceme trust receipt

Interest/profit on placements with banks
Interest from placemeant

Interast/profit from deposits with banks
Interest from reverse repc

Interest paidiprofit shared on deposits and borrowings etc.

interest on depasits

Profit shared on Mudaraba Deposit
Interest on borrowings

interest on lease liabilities

Interest on deposits

Savings account

Royal profit deposit

Term depos#

Profit shared on mudaraba deposit
Mudaraba Savings Deposit
Mudaraba royal profit deposit
Mudaraba term deposit

Interest on borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings

Interest paid on Repo

Interest on lease liabilities

tnterest on lease iiabilities
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Notes 2022 2021 \
Taka Taka

9.1
19.2
19.3

20.1
20.2
20.3
20.4

648,107,917 480,975,067
247,406,715 187,286,567
280,519,548 101,146,537

1,174.034,178 769,408,161

232,731,629 203,154,890
381,537,288 254,049,541
7,332,569 2,772,104
3,169,614 3,041,139
4,874,947 2,783,061
15,934,111 15,165,889
527,859 $,443
646,107,917 480,975,067
- 2,431,606
240,650,432 179,963,342
16,255 2,747,427
3,061,638 119,288
3,678,390 2,025,204
247,406,715 187,286,567
225,739,306 89,643,579
30,778,501 11,502,938
24,001,739 -
280,519,546 401,146,517
443,352,377 222,184,360
174,563,809 94,455,158
51,218,588 17,324,029
5,127,449 4,832 529

674,262,023 338,796,077

96,113,992 46,432,820
47,374,440 368,488,759
299,863,945 139,262,781
443,352,377 222,184,360
61,979,781 26,682,733
5,185,961 7,707,778
107,397,877 60,064,648
174,563,609 94,465,159
51,132,244 17,324,029
86,344 -
51,218,688 17,324,022
5,127,449 4,832,529
5,127,449 4,832,528




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Notes 2022 2021
Taka Taka

21 investment income
Discaunt on treasury bill 3,808,852 24,110,999
Mark-up on treasury bonds 287,610,276 377,485,728
Trading gain on treasury bills - -
Trading gain on Bangiadesh Govt, Treasury Bonds - -
Profit/(L.oss) on revaiuation of T. Bond HFT 216,612,565 {197,439,851)
Profit/{Loss) on revaluation of T-bilt HFT (42,604) -
Capital gain on treasury bills and Bangladesh Govi. Treasury Bonds 1,803,351 271,168,248
Capital loss on treasury bills and Bangladesh Govt, Treasury Bonds {147,069,224) (6,173,015
Interest and amortization on securities 2629611 %,961,196

365,452,828 476,104,005

22 Commission, exchange and brokerage

Fees, commission etc, 25,295,903 29,470,807
181,655,931 95,431,901

206,951,834 124,902,808

Exchange gains

23 Other operating income

Service charges recovered 4,199,723 2,676,959
L/C amendment - 62,067
Locker rert 2,269,983 2,364,450
Charges 1,172,937 1,673,758
Courier charges 695,124 862,783
Chegue book charges 729,395 686,500
Profit on sale of fixed assets 164,250 6,683
LIPAS LG interest income 4,795,688 2,748,297
Others 8,645,333 4,414,838

15,496,236

22,682,433 498,

24 Salaries and allowarnces

Salafies & Allowances 192,155,259 195,630,123
Housing allowance 52,000,024 49,332,450
Conveyance allowance 11,901,998 11,482,328
Car allowance 12,321,049 10,901,425
Other aliowahces 1,183,734 1,414,503
Festival honus 32,737,580 32,243,270
Performance bonus 12,966,110 19,101,885
Provident fund 12,623,228 12,122,120
Provisian for gratuity 23,549,903 6,844,396

351,438,882 339,072.600

25 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. 25.1 15,213,627 14,514,840
Insurance 24,978,908 16,917,309
Cleaning and mainienance 5,498,678 5,352,347
Electricity and utilities 11,095,469 10,855,529

56,786,677 47,640,025

Electricity Expense during July to December, 2022 Tk, 5,184,235 against pudget Tk. 5,072,853,

251 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.

Rent, taxes etc. 15,213,627 14,514,840
15,213,627 14,614,840
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ende

d 31 December 2022 (continued)

26

27

28

29

30

30.1

3

Legal expenses

Legal fees and charges
Consultancy fees

Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc.

Posiage and couriers

Electronic mail and an-line connectivity
Telegram, fax, telex, SWIFT and internet charge
Telephone charges

Stationery, printing, advertisement etc.

Stationary and printing

Publicity and advertisemant

Country Head's salary and allowances fees
Salaries and Allowances

Festival bonus

Performance bonus

The Bank's contribution to provident fund

Car allowance

Provision for gratuily

Depreciation and repair of Bank's assets

Depreciation of Bank's Assets
Repair and Maintenance of Bank's Assets

Repair and maintenance of the Bank's assets
Furniture, fixture and fittings

Rented premises

Office equipment

Computer maintenance

Motor vehicles

Other expenses

Bank charges, brokerage and commission
Archiving

Subscripticn and periodicals
Entertainment

Security

Traveling and conveyance

Car Fuel

Card centre charges

QOperational Loss

Others

Fuel Expense during Juiy to December, 2022 Tk.

Notes 2022 2021
Taka Taka
280,975 14,375
(934,365) 2,130,150
(663300} __ 2144525
2,003,081 2,082,317
44,253,112 12,913,531
628,259 656,788
865,795 862,283
17,780,247 16,514,918
5,157,706 4,953,502
769,550 158,250
5,927,250 5111762
16,496,376 16,814,493
2,502,796 2,394,750
1,870,000 1,700,000
1,227,504 1,162,680
1,020,000 1,020,000
1,022,923 058,900
24,239 599 24,060,823
8.1 108,717,240 113,260,364
30.1 16,965,613 11,434,278

123,682,853 124,694,642

584,480 404,846
3,032,343 1,311,100
3,730,671 2,162,125
7,859,638 5,244,326
1,748,481 1,311,881

16,965,613 11,434,278

694,131 668,426
1,866,300 4,651,881
2.417,747 2,561,760
8,227,984 4,517,789
9,984,361 9,802,156
4 361,480 4,795,386
7,489 668 5,798,273
5,030,621 4,112,766
1,460,000 5,123,910
2,090,314 2,608,617

44 522 606 41,660,964

4,486,293 against budget Tk. 5,003,129,
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decembat 2022 (continued)

32

321

32.2

33

334

33.2

33.3

Nates 2022 l 2021
Taka . Taka

Provision for loans and advances/invesiments charged during the vear

Provision for unclassified loans and advancesfinvestments 32.1 48,808,330 16,783,139
Provision for classified loans and advancesfinvestmenis 32.2 61,277,187 (2,426,078}
110,085,517 14,357,061

Generatl provision

Provisian made during the year

On general Joans and advances/investments etc. 48,997 584 16,563,416

On special general Provision loans - Covid 19 {189,254) 229,723
48,808,330 16,783,139

Reversal of provision - _
48,808,330 16,783,139

Specific provision

Specific provision made during the year 73,453,869 286,540

Reversal of provision {12,176,882) (2,712,618}
61,277,187 (2,426,078

Tax expenses

Current tax expenses 331 268,000,600 137,000,000

Deferred tax (credit) (8,300,575) (22 228,179)

259,699,425 114,771.821

Current tax expenses

Current year 243,088,863 97,272,432
Changes i estimales related to prior years 54,911,137 39,727,568

268,000,000 137,000,000

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

2022 2021

% Taka % Taka
Profit before income tax as per profit and 397,752,003 440,682,186
loss account
Income tax as per applicable tax rate 40% 159,100,801 40% 176,272,874
Factors affecting the tax charge for current period
Inadmissible expenses 17% 69,084,138 9% 39,234,047
Admissible expenses in the current year 4% (15,096,078) -27% {118,234,489)
Changes in estimales relaled to prior years 14% 54,811,137 9% 39,727,568
Effect of deferred tax -2% (8,300,575) 5% (22,228,179)
Total tax expenses (credit) 65% 259,699,425 26% 114.771.821

1

Uncertainty over income tax treatment

Though it appears that the Bank has tax file apen since 2009 for various grounds mainly interpretation of faws and the
treatment. The appeal filed at different level from Commissioner of Taxes Appeal to Honorable High Court Division.
Where, we did not receive proper judgement through appeal from tax department, we preferred appeal before Appellate
Tribunal. Under the Appeals filed so far, we have hoth refund claim from Tax office and tax ctaim from tax depariment as
well. Howaver, we are reviewing all pending tax claim every year and kept provision BDT 1,793,152,900 against {ax
liabilities of BDT 1,848,829,027 based on management's assessment. The bank belisves that its provision for tax
liabilities are adeqguale for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law
and prior expetience. Please refer to Annexure V for details.

56




LS

018'192'6% (zL9) (ggz'ar) - {4z5'/eL'orl) /98'iFT'ril | 0BTOOT'LE ysodag oseA - cm_mw_w_mMM
scevozLe (228l (1o1'81) - (o19°202°288) | ISCIBL'PLE | EBU'BELYE ysodeq@ ONSOA| e o oy e
TEO'0LE 259'95% 086' L4 Junoooy oRsoNl  wuoelEY URIBY Hueg
B - - - - - - - Bupmoslog|  uresyed UB[BHY Mueg
fAA1TA e
ZZ0Z fequeseg pebieus sesh 10qUIBIoG 15 uo pabieys JACYGLET pesingsip zzoz faenuep
1S Uo eduR|E( | UOISSHUWCT | 843 Buunp pred 1 se sjgeked EEREath UeoT JUMBIDUNM |  uBoT/epRwll L0 U0 aosueey adA] souejeg | uoneziuehio j0 SWEN
Buisoin js994 Ang SSIOXI/LVA Jse12u] pisodag uo usodoag usodag Buwad(
pied 1ss1s1u}
suonosesuzn Aped pegiRy
£99°6¥8'10L ¥z c2L 801
1B0'GLF'E ove L1TE AImeioy
9z0'8Te'e S¥Loek'y puny JUSPIAGL
95’605 vE 268'6.9'101 sueuag 29ko|de Wisl-HoUg
‘pasudwod Jesh sy Jog uonesusdwos |puuosiad wswabeusw Aoy
suuosiad JusweBeuely Ay UNM suoioesuRIl 1
BYeL ENEL
1202 [A4I[A sainso|asip Aued pajeey

{penunuod) Z20Z 19GWSIad 1E Pap

s 1234 DU JOI pUE JB SB SIUSWIZIEIS [BIDUBUY 33 O3 SS30MN




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

35

36

37

38

Number of employees

The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part thereof who received a total yearly
remuneration of Taka 36,000 or above were 189 (2021:179).

Highlights on the overall activities
Highlights an the overail activities of the Bank have been furnished in Annexure L.
Employee related fraud

There was no fraud oceurredireported to Bangladesh Bank during the year 2022 which may indicate the
involvement of the Bank's employses. The Bank monitors its employees' performance and established
conirols to mitigate such risicif exist.

Events after the reporting period

There is no significant avents after halance sheet date that may affect financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 Degamber 2022.
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Bank Alfalah Limited
Bangladesh Operations

Highlights on the overall activities

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Annexure !

{in Taka)
Sl. No. Particulars Notes 2022 2021
1 {Paid-up capital (Fund from head office) 13 4,528,498,538 4,454,035,285
2 |Total capital 13.1 5,942,095,151 5,930,047,026
3 [Capital surplus 13.1 1,942,095,151 1,930,047,026
4 [Total assets 31,001,267,136! 26,458,5662,402
5 |Total deposits 11 20,827,944,847| 15,642,296,091
6 [Total loans and advances/invesiments 7 17,396,404,265| 12,629,103,254
7 |Total contingent liabilities and commitments 1,183,033,178 5,075,727,277
8 [Creditinvestment deposit ratio 83.52% 80.74%
9 |Percentage of classified loansfinvestments against
total ioans and advances/investments 1.98% 2.81%
10 |Operating Profit/Profit before provisien 470,307,520 445,539,247
11 H{Loss)profit after tax and provision 138,052,578 325,910,365
12 |Amount of classified loansfinvestments 7.8 340,358,196 355,250,035
13 |Provisions kept against classified loansfinvestments 12.1 225,362,198 231,141,808
14 |Provision surplus/({deficit) against classified
joansfinvestments 12.1 85,709,570 62,034 695
15 {Cost of fund 3.46% 2.15%
16 |Interest earning assets 27,306,094 ,427 | 23,257,279,851
17 |Neon-interest earning assets 3,786,162,709 3,201,282,551
18 [Return on investment (ROI) 5.42% 5.50%
19 |Return on assets (ROA) [PAT/ Average assets] 0.48% 1.19%
20 [Income from investment 21 365,452 828 476,104,005

59




0%

§02°C5C ¢08C  £v0LBE £t 1L00020TrL Y] W82 Fi06:187) 190 Z0L8IS L BS) 655526 deb Aupinbi 19N
STVE00'8c2 52 SOZT OEV'0LOT 236G BYL'E 6Ce VB0 ZG6'G  GLO'8BY LAGE L08'CLL'BES'E saniigel (2ol
z.8'810'258°C £0Z'0ey 0LOE LEVOPLYES - ¥Z2'6eG'6.2 206'098'/2 senige|| 12Ui0 pue UsISIAOId
1p8'ppeLZ8'0E - G¥5'SI0'GLE'E  BTOPE9.SE'S  BLLVIGGEE'S 66/.'665'v9Z'T susodag
LLLLP0'8FS L - - - C/G'3PE'1L0E Pl CROOPT'L sjuebe pue suogmusul
relouBUl 'SyUEG Jauo Yueg ysepe|Bueg wouy sBuimoliog

saniger]

ASL 26 160° 3 OPZ CLEFELT 189'555'¥08'S 296 6LORCLC 0L 96S6PE Sl SUEZELWOVF S3esse [Bol
- - - - - - siasse Bupjueg UoN
/82°200'08L' L - 1Z0'6Z9'veY'L LBL'66Z'2ET (AN AN 256'928'} s189888 IBUI0
189'095'9Tt £08'6EY'L 7ZQ'9EL'SEL - - - saunpXyy PUB sinung ‘sesiwaid Buipnioul siesse pexi
COT'POY'98E Ll LEO'FELLE £Z.'168'025 LLL'Z64'€0L'Z  080'C6SLSLYL  0ZE'228'evg SIUBLISSALL [ SBOUBADE pUE SU207
920'+08'8/2'9 25L°681°20¢'L 20128887’ S98'2Ta L¥L S80'85.'964 000'es syususasd)
000'00008F 2 - - - - 000'000'08r'2 20[0U YOuS U0 |[22 18 Aauop
90Z'620°'698 - - - 000°000'0%9 20Z'620'81L2 SUORNHISUS {BIDUBUY PUE SHUBQ IS0 M Sougieyd
£99'08¥'552 ' $81'666'486 - - - BV LSY LLZL used
SEES
{ 1230 L | “sieai ¢ arcgy i sieah G- | syuows Zj-¢ | supuow ¢-) [ wuow j ordn | siejnopied!

(=21 U}

§i BAnXoULY

220z 18qwasa( 1§38 SV
{Ssmpqey pue S3esSE Jo Aunjew Jo sishjeuy)

juswialelg Anpinbiy
suonetedQ ysepe|bueg
PSP YelEiY Yueg



5

02025295t ¥ze OvT £81
992'8¢C ¥orL0 168'LE 69862 66540 108’68 Adf ofyoy Hueq palapeyd piEpuElg
LU LoV 0£3E°46 8Ly 108°9z0'L Stz L0% £Z5'6 ocdng UnpiUelg Mueg PRUISHELD piEpURIS
808'€EL VLTLGYL §5Z'9 185'669'2 FAS A AAS 960'ze 4899 uopuo Mueg palsueyD PIEPUEIS
- 0008's8 - - 0162°¢04 - asn 0N MBN 'UBISP{EG JO HUBG |[EUCHEN
096°LLL 0008'58 908 z2£9'9C6 gleg'ell 180's anaoy IyorIEY ‘PIUWL] UBIRllY HUEg
#PL09L'F 0008°G8 TR £o¥ 16T’y Ql8z' g0l S¥S'Y anovy IEquINiy Mueq palslelD PIEpURlg
086'%91'0GL 0008's8 GLL0GL'L §oR'SSET VL 0462°c0l 0v6'989°L asn MIOA MEN MUed paispey] pepug
Lag wepeanbg vwmmwm JUNOWE 04 | 10 Jus{zAInb NN@MMm ILUNOWE 74 5d/3 AouaLng nueg 2 Jo swiEN

B BAnXsBUUY

20T 12quusds( it je sy

(sjunoasy onson) usspe|fuesy apisING - SHUBq J2UJ0 YIIM SIUBRY
suopeied ysspeiBueg

peuLT Uejeiy yueg




29

0C2'2SC £98'S GRE'0E 108'920') 186°135°C gli/la9'62 8GE LEL69L'S uonisod 19N
9SP t00°32¢ SC - - ZL6'591 Z230'066'22L YV LV P0Sve saipagey (P10l
219'910'758'2 - - - S6%'760'¢ 9/C'CIBBYE T sanjidel] 1240
L7RF¥8 128°0C - - z18'591 Q16'866'¢ZE /10529 +05'0C usodaq
LL2LP0'ePE L - - - 899'L¥5'L6E 5¥0'00L'0SL'L sjuebe pug SUORNIISU} [EIDUEBUY 'SHUR] JBUI0 WO} sBuimoLIog
soniIdery
gL 162 LE0'LE 522°0% £0%°920°) YR e0LT 08z 262218 OvS'8Ee ¥IZ0E S)}ISSE [BI0 L
- - - - - - SIDSSE DURUR-UCN
I8T'T000EL'L - - - 126'08C 7 GSe GLY'GEL L S19ssE 19U)0)
/89'096°9¢1 - - - - 189'906'9¢C1 s}osse PoXld
GOZ FOF'98E LL - - - 298 L¥6 /BE /8GZOF 968 9L $20UBAPE pUE SUBOT
oZ0YOR'6.2'G - - - - 920 %08'6/2'9 SUETH-CH
000°000'0EY € - - - - 000°000'0EF T S0L0U 310US UG [[20 18 ABUoly
207 620698 802°62 108'9e0 L 1966682 L96'CRY 6.1 ¥96'88/'589 SUonniTsul [El0UEUL PUB SYUE] 19UJ0 UllM SOUBEY
10G 0EL ¥66°)L ais - 15Ty C18°/69'08C TeB'IZFE9L L sueq Wsde Sl pue yueg ysape|bueg Lim soueled
961'02E'69¢ - - - g88 orl 292'¢/1 692 puey ul Useo
eSSy
Adf o 1ag h.wwﬂmm 489 40 1049 agshiio —
1d8 u ieol jusfeAainby JusjEAINbT ] judjeAInbyg i0s yusjeanbs siginsiaed
Fardira Jaquiadasg L¢ 18 SE SVUBRYG

Al Binxeuuy

Z¢0g 1aquisdeg L ie sy
sisA[euy AJualng
suonesedy ysapejbueg
PoNMIT YzlelY jueg

-fAouaung Ag umop usyolq (1ggiedel ysapeiBueg ut sjunows
BUALIES 12U Ui PIPNIoUl 2UE SelyIgel| pue siasse spued sul Eeic Jaquimnsd LE Je SE SShiIgel| pue 51esse Jo

siskjele 251M-AoUBLND SUl SPZUBLILING MOjSY 0B} SUL




£9

006251262} 805°€8E° ¥k 299°189°2Z¢ 1Z0°'629'reb I22'8SE LIS L jEIol
SiEp onp UM PapILgns aq o) Wey  |026 60V €LE £98'880'Ele - 99604 80¢ £98'880°€1E Fe0LEC0T [448 4
PSAIS08) S1EJYILS] DOUBIESD XBL 080065 vEL 6/0°065 vEL - 080°085'FE L 6.0'085 7EL £20g-2c0e 120z
PoAI02) S1BDIHSD SOURIESID XB L 09z vLr Lig 09C'rer LLE - 09Z'ver L1e 08 ver'Lle 2¢0e-1202 0Z0Z
PaAIB08] S1EDHIAD SIURIEID Xe | LB6 /89 VLE 166°489FLE - L66 L8O FLE 186 L89'FLE 1202-020¢ 61L0C
jesdde jepun ¥Z9'€EL'BLE AL 0ZL'crlov 729'eel 10T 2o ezl 10T 0¢0C-610¢ gLog
PaAISISI SBDIIILSD BOUBIES|D XBL 6L €65 LS4 67l €65 /9L - 671'€6G L1 67l e85 L9l 61L0¢-81L0C L10Z
|gadde Japun 965’67 £8L 99¥ /GG 081 Z99'€/Z 65 0.¢ ¥B9'BEL GGR'GLBETL g10¢-LL08 gl0c
|eadde s8pu S02'80¢'Z61 L00'80E 261 086'ESRZE 200'655° /91 e LE0 65 L102-9102 5102
jesdde Japuf 986'¥20'LCL 966720 L2l vY&y'G32 Ly SPELEB'E8 LOv'LOG L. SL0C-+L0OZ £l0g
[eadde Japun 189°0L€°05 1239012 08 £00°0r8' LS 6.9'0.ETL ZglL'olz'e PLOZ€10E [458]4
[esdde Japun 580¢8l 6 ¥BE 850'65 £GL'LES 05 109'e0E'8) 8.8°8LLY €102-¢L0¢g 1102
teadde Japun MBS 8L¥ESLES 0l 628 Ly oFe'5Z8 9L CZEOLSY 210Z-1102 0Log
[eadde sspun 000'GZE'S 0er'02C L 090°LLL c0L200'8 Q00'GEE'S 1L0g-010€ 800¢
e} Wwniiuiul
SjusSES {uangal Xep } 18pio eedde 15d 204Nn0S JE pajonpe winyal Jesh esAh
snEeIg elouetid Jod s [13G7 | o 100 Ag paauie]s d 1€ pajonpsp i
fanige) xe} jeiel j jeadde Buunp pue zad se XBj JUBLUSSSSSY | wodY]
play uoisihold xe] jeuonippyY
usnges upm pred xey

(exel ) SMO[O) S8 B18 SIESA BU) JO 1SBI IO STYBIS "PIIHES uaad SARY ¥|0Z PUE B00E JESA SI0D| 0} dn sajy xel
€207 42GquIsdsQ Lt 1e Y

UONISOd Xe] 10 JUSWSIES
suonesadg usopeibueg

papwi yeleily yueg
A Ddnixsuuy




Bank Alfalah Limited
Motijheel Islamic Banking Branch

Independent auditor's report and financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022




Annexure V!

Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Mofijeel Islamic Banking Branch
Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2022

. 2022 2021
Particulars Notes Taka Taka
Property and assets

Cash 1 246,928,273 266,563,053
Cash In hand {incluging foreign currencies) 55,941,150 72,139,729
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank (s} 180,887,123 194,423,324
{including foreign currencies)

Balance with other banks and financial institutions 2 600,000,000 300,000,000
in Bangladesh 600,000,000 300,000,000
Cuiside Bangladesh - -

Placement with banks and other financial institutions - -

Investments in shares and securities - -
Govemment (Prize Band) - -
Others - .

Investments 3 3,955,829 544 3,273,432,817
General investments elc, 3,955,829,544 3,269,780,373
Bills purchased and discounted - 3,652,244

Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures 4 426,149 587,361

Other assefs 5 047,126,825 1,688,155,363

Non-banking assets - -

Total property and assets 5,750,310,7%1 5,529,838,3924

Liabilities and capital

Liahilities :

piacement from banks and other financial institutions 69,912,752 40,720,709

Deposits and other accounts 6 5,402,222 211 5,335,816,963
Al-wadeeah current and other deposit accounts 632,774,804 728,328,241
Bills payable 310,913,814 378,711,869
Mudaraba saving deposits 1,889,903,335 2,049,334 ,433
Mudaraba term deposits 2 658,630,258 2,179,442 420

Other liabilities 7 188,175,828 153,230,722

Differed tax liabilities/(assels) - -

Total liabilities 5,750,310,791 5,529,838,394

Capital/shareholders’ equity - -

Retained earnings 8 . -

Total shareholders’ eguity - -

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 5,750,310,791 5,529,838,394

The annexed hotes 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financial stg
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Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Motijhee! Islamic Banking Branch
Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2022

: 2022 2021
Particulars Neotes Taka Taka
Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 87,923,662 206,503,202
9 303,694,267 338,906,245

Letters of guarantee

Irrevocable letters of credit {including back to back bills) 10 174,304,808 566,263,795
Bills for collection 88,852,943 48,518,524
Value of Bangladesh Sanchaypatra 270,800,000 270,800,000

925,575,680 1,430,990,766

Total

Other commitments
Documentary crediis and short term irade-related iransactions
Forward assets purchased and forward deposits placed
Undrawn note issuance and revolving undenwriting facilifies
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments -

Total R
Total off-balance sheet items including contingent liabilities 925,575,680 1,430,990,766

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of these financlal statements.

/f

5 ;
Head of Finance Coﬁﬁﬁy Ogﬁfrations Head Country Head
As per our report of same date.
A/
A e
i " / %’Zoww_
Dhaka, ; 7 # H AH e Auditor

W Mahed! Hasan, Pariner
Enrolment Number: 1000
Hatwman Rehman Hug
Gharergd Accountanis

EPMG in Bangiadesh

Eirm Reglstration Number: NIA
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Bank Alfatah Limited, Bangladesh Operations

Motijheel Istamic Banking Branch
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

: 2022 2021
Particulars Notes Taka Taka
investment income 12 274,669,606 198,789,506
Profit paid on deposits 13 (176,306,843) {94,818,981)
Net investment income 98,362,763 103,970,625
Income from investment in shares/securities 14 - -
Commission, exchange and brokerage 15 149,286,409 59,061,237
Other operating income i6 6,644,478 4,232,174
Total operating income (a} 254,293,650 167,263,936
Salaries and allowances i7 17,495,269 23,085,142
Rent, taxes, insurance, eleciricity etc. 18 4,792,569 4,690,786
tegal & Professional expenses - -
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc, 19 1,507,921 1,662,379
Sialionery, printing, advertisement eic. 20 873,719 583,590
Shariah suparvisery committee's fees and expenses - -
Auditors' fees - -
Depreciation and repair to bank's assets 21 11,683,614 13,075,747
Zakat expenses - -
Other expenses 22 3,861,770 3,447,825
Total operating expenses (b) 40,204,862 46,645,469
Profit before provision (¢ = a-b) 214,088,788 120,718,467
Provislon for investments 6,836,022 1,747,554
General provision 7.1 5,836,022 1,747,654
Specific provision 7.1 - -
provision for off-balance sheet items 7.2 (4,568,965) 3,659,540
Provision for diminution in value of investments in shares - -
Other provisions - -
Total provision (d) 2,267,067 5,407,094
Totai profit before tax (e = c-d) 214,821,731 118,311,373
Provision for taxation:

Current fax expense - -
Deferred tax expense / {income) - -
Total provision for taxation - -
Net profiti{loss) after tax 211,824,731 115,311,373
The annexed nofes 1 to 26 form an infegral part of these financial gtatements.
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As per our report of same date.

8 Mehed Hasan, Fartngr
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Bank Alfalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations
Motijhee! islamic Banking Branch
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022

For the year ended 31 Decemhber 2021

Fund deposited Surplus in
Particulars with Bangladesh |profit and loss| Total equity
Bank account
Balance as at 1 January 2021 - - -
- 115,311,373 115,311,373

Net Profiti{loss) for the period
Transferred to Bangladesh country office

(115,311,373)

(115,311,373)

Balance as at 31 December 2021

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Fund deposited Surplus in
Particulars with Bangladesh |profit and loss| Total equity
Bank account
Balance as at 1 January 2022 - . -
- 211,821,733 211,821,731

Net loss for the pericd
Transferred te Bangladesh country office

(211,821,731)

(211,821,731

Balance as at 31 December 2022

The annexed noles 1 fo 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Bank Affalah Limited, Bangladesh Operations

Motijheel Islamic Banking Branch
Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 Decermnbey 2022

. 2022 20214
Particulars Taka Taka

Cash flows from operating activitles

Investment income receipts in cash 274,669,608 198,789,506
Profit paid on deposits (140,136,047} (93,252,204)
Faes and commission receipts in cash 14,484,770 13,834,707
Recoveries on loans previously written-off - -
Cash payments to employees (17,495,269) (23,085,142)
Cash payments to suppliers (7,128,013) (6,891,527)
Income taxes paid - -
Receipts from other operating activities 141,448,117 49,458,704
Payments for other operating activities (4,731,285) | (3,889,644)
Operating profit/{loss) before changes in operaiing assets and 261,109,879 434,864,400

liabilities

Increaseldecrease in operating assets and liabilities

Statutory deposits

Purchasefsale of trading securities
Investments to customers

Other assets

Deposits and other accounts from other banks
Deposits and other accounts fram customers
Other liabilities

(682,395,927}

(211,823,061)

Cash generated fromi(used in) operating assets and liablilities

Net cash inflow/(outflow} from operating activities

Cash fiows from investing activities

Proceads from salefredemption of securities
payment for purchase of securities
Purchase of fixed assels

Sale of fixed assets

Net cash {used in)ifrom investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities [

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash in hand {including foreign currencies)
Balance with other banks and financiaf institutions
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank (including foreign

currencies)
Placement from banks and other financial institutions

530,206,807 138,487,688
101,302,646 (293,891,532)
55,102,602 216,049,508
(14,009,080 (29,542,991)
{9,793,952) {180,720,298)
251,315,927 {45,855,898)
(72,750) (88,000)
(72,750} (88,000)
RN - |
254,243,177 (45,943,898)
525,772,344 574,716,242
777,015,521 525,772,344
55,941,150 72,139,729
600,000,000 300,000,000
190,987,123 194,423,324
(69,912,752) (40,790,709)
777,016,521 525,772,344

The annexed notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes fo the financial statement

s as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1.1

1.2

1.b

2.1

2.2

Cash

Cash in hand {Including foreign currency)
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s)
{including foreign currencies)

Cash in hand

Local currency
Foreign currencies

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s)

Local currency
Forgign currencies

Cash Reserve Reguirement (CRR} for Islamic Banking

4% of average Demand and Time Liabilities
Required reserve

Actual reserve held

Surplus

Actual reserve held

Statutory Liquidity Requirement (SLR) for Islamic Banking

5.5% of required Average Demand and Time Liabilities:
Reguired reserve

Actuat reserve held

Surplus

Actual reserve held

Held for Statutory Liguidity Requirement:
Cash in hand

Excess of daily reserve

Other Eligible Securities

Fareign currency used in BOT

Balance with other banks and financial institutions
In Bangladesh
Outside Bangladesh

in Bangladesh

Mudaraba term deposit:
Export Import Bank of Bangladesh Lid.

Maturity-wise groupings of balance with other banks
and financlal institutions

On demand

Not more than 3 months

More than 3 months but less than 1 year
More than 1 year but less than & years
More than 5 years

89

Notas 2022 2021
Taka Taka
i1 55,041,150 72,139,729
1.2 190,987,123 194,423,324
246,928,273 266,563,053
55,907,888 72,138,125
33,262 3,604
55,641,150 72,139,729
190,987,123 184,423,324
190,987,123 194,423,324
177,761,810 170,633,477
195,252,560 194,838,751
17,490,950 24,305,274
4,39% 4.57%
244,422 214 234,483,531
244 432 700 253,515,003
10,486 19,031,472
5.50% 5.95%
55,841,150 72,138,729
17,490,950 24,305,274
157,070,000 157,070,000
13,930,600 -
244,432,700 253,515,003
2.1 600,000,000 300,000,000
600,000,000 300,000,000
500,000,000 300,000,000

500,000,000 300,000,000

600,000,000

300,000,000

600,000,000

300,000,000

Eg'.f E ey

\Z | eas =




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the

year ended 31 December 2022

31

3.2

a3

3.4

Investments

General investments etc.
Riils purchased and discounted

General investments efc.

in Bangladesh
Murabaha (LPO)
Trust receipts

Diminishing Musharkah
Advance against Murabaha
Finance Against Foreign Bil
Finance Against EDF

Spot Murabaha

’ Qutside Bangladesh

Maturity-wise grouping

Repayable On demand

Mot mare than 3 months

More than 3 menths but not more than 1 year
More fhan 1 year bul _not more than 5 years
More than b years

[nvestments on the basis of significant concettration

Advances o Chief execuiive, other Senior executives and

other Officers

Industrial joans and advances

Industry-wise classification of investments

Agri Business

Automobite dealers

Cement
Chemicals

Financial Institutions & MFls
Food & Personal Care Producis
Manufacturing & sale of Domestic Appliances

Metal & Allied

0il & Gas Marketing Companies
Others/Miscelianeous

Pharmaceudicals

Printing & Publishing
Real Estate/Construction

Services

Textite Composite / Garments Manufacturing

Textile Spinning
Textile Weaving
Trading

Juie Mills

Vanaspati & Alliad Indusiries

Notes 2022 2021
Taka Taka
3.1 3,055,829,544 3,269,780,373
3.8 - 3,652,244
__3,956,829,544 _3,273432,617,
3,289,272,735 3,228,397,453
31,018,658 B
- 472,282
70,913,161 40,910,638
564,625,000 -
3,055,829,644 3,269,780,373
3,055,829,544 3,269,780,373
7,051,291,503 1,783,748,497
1,004,538,041 1,489,584,120
3,055,829,544 3,273,6432,617
3,855,829,544 3,273,432,617
3,955,829,544 3,273,432,6147
2022 2021
% of Tofal Loan BDT o4 of Total Loan BDT
2.18% 86,332,128 0.04% 1,330,000
0.00% - 0.00% -
2.67% 105,712,544 2.51% §2,000,000
0.00% - 0.27% 8,851,228
1.26% 49,894,250 2.29% 75,060,000
28.79% 1,138,846,907 34.65% 1,134,148,583
12.98% 513,593,033 17.16% 561,687,500
0.00% - 0.00% B
1.93% 76,453,125 0.,00% -
0.24% 9,514,124 5.46% 178,768,749
1.87% 73,098,787 0.00% -
0.78% 31,038,500 0.96% 31,327,667
0.00% Lo 0.00% -
0.00% - 0.00% -
8.28% 327,695,869 12.38% 405,360,203
14.27% 564,625,000 21.86% 719,000,000
2.48% 97,927,277 1.88% 61,425,446
0.00% - 0.44% 14,482,241
15.70% 621,200,000 0.00% -
6.55% 259,000,000 0.00% -
100% 3.956,829,544 100% 3,273,432,617
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Notes to the financial stat

ements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

3

3.5

36

.7

investments (Continued})

Geographical location-wise investments

Dhaka Division
Chittagong Division
Sylhet Division

Grouping of investments as per classification rules of Bangladesh Bank

tUnclassified:

Standard including staff murabaha

Special Mention Account {SMA)

Classified:
Suhstandard
Doubtful

Bad or loss

particulars of required provision for investments

Unclassified:

Standard {Other than SME)
Standard (SME)

Standard {Agri Loan)

Special Mentions Account {SMA)

Classified:
Substandard
Doubtful
Bad or loss

Total provision maintained
{Shortfally/Surplus provision

71

38,585,563
139,562

2022 2021
% of Total Loan BDT o, of Total Loan BDT
100% 3,955,829,044 100% 3,273,432,617
0% - 0% -
0% - 0% -
100% 3,055,829,544 100% 3,273,432,617
2022 2021
% of Total Loan BDT o, of Total Loan BDT
100.00% 3,955,829,544 59.99% 3,272,960,334
(.00% - 0.00% -
- 100.00% 3,955,829,544 99.99% 3,272,960,334
0.00% - 0.00% -
0,00% - 0.00% . -
0.00% - 0.01% 472,283
0.00% - 0.01% 472,283
100% 3,955,829,5844 100% 3,273,432,617
2022 20214
Base for Required Base for Required
Provision provision Provision provision
3,807,523.654 38,075,237 3,108,527,196 31,085,272
148,305,890 370,765 142,633,140 356,583
- - 21,800,000 248,000
3,955,829,544 38,448,001 3,272,960,336 31,659,855
- ‘ - \ 445,320 445 320
. - - 445,320 445,320
3,965,829,544 35,446,001 3!273!405,6556_ 32,105,175

32,194,861

89,686




Notes o the financial statemenis as at an

d for the year ended 31 December 2022

3

3.8

39

investments {Continued)

Particutars of investments

vil}

wiif)

ix)
X}

{a)

(c)

Xi)

Investments considered good in respect of which

the banking company is fully secured

invesiments considered good against which the banking company
holds o security other than the deblor's personal guarantee,

Investments sonsidered good and secured by personal undertakings

of one or more parties in addition to the personal guarantee
of the deblor;

Investments adversely classified, provision noi maintained there againsi;

Investments due by directors or officers of the banking cempany
or any of these either separately or jointly with any other person
Investments due by compantas or firms in which the directors of
the banking company have interests as directors, pariners

or managing agents or, in the case of private companies

as members

Maximurn fotal amount of lnvestments including temyporary
advances made al any fime during the year to directors

or managers or officars of the banking company or any of
therm either separately or jeintly with any other persons
Maxirmum total amount of Investments including temporary
advances granied during the year to the companies or firms

in which the directors of the banking company have interests
as directors, pariners or managing agents or in the case of
private companies as mambers

Due from Banking Companies

Amount of Classified Investment on which Profit has not

been chargad:

Movernent of Classified Investments:

Cpening batance

Increasef(Decreass) during the year

Closing balance

Provision against the [nvestment classified as

badiloss at the date of balance sheet

Amount of profit charged in suspense account

Investments written off:

- Gurrent Year

- Cumulative to-date

- Amount of written off loans for which lawsuit has filed

Bills purchased and discounted

Bills purchased and discounted excluding treasury bilis:
In side Bangladesh
Outside Bangladesh

Maturity grouping of bills discounted and purchased

Payabie wilhin one month

Over 1 monih but less than 3 months
Over 3 monihs but less than & months
& months or more

T2

2022 | 2021
Taka Taka
3.955,820,644| | 3273432617
3.055.820.544  3,273,432,617
. 472,283
472,283 472,283
(472,283 .
- 472,283
. 445,320
- 75,810
472,283 -
55,314,465 54,842,182
55,314,465 54,842,182
3,652,244
. 3 652,244

3,565,357

3,565,357
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 34 December 2022

4.2

5.1

5.2

Right of use assets

Cost

Balance at 1 January
Additions
Adjustments

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January
Depraciation

Adjustments

Carrying amounts

Others assets
income generating other assets

Non-income generating other assets

i} Investment in shares of subsidiary companies:
- In Bangladesh
- Outside Bangladesh

i) Stationery, siamps, printing materials, etc.

iy Advance rent and advertisement

iv) Profit receivables

v} Security deposits

vi) Preliminary, formation and crganizational expenses,

renovation, development and prepaid expenses
viiy Branch adjusimant
viii) Suspense agcount
ix) Silver
x} Others

Profit receivables

Profit Receivable from placement with Banks

Mark up receivables on bill purchased and discounted
Others

Other Receivable

Sundry debiars miscetlaneous (Receivable from
Bangtadesh Bank)

Notes 2022 2021
Taka Taka
37,402,559 37,402,559
(20,891,561} -
16,510,908 37,402,559
37,402,559 18,701,280
10,470,139 12,029,927
{31,361,700) 6,671,352
16,510,888 37,402,559
45,000 137,520
5.1 - .
911,448,895 1,420,421,836
52 35,632,930 268,596,007
947,128,825 1,689,155,363
047,126,825 1,689,155,363
- 300
35,632,930 268,595,707
35,632,930 268,596,007
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Notes Taka Taka
6 Deposits and other accounts
Al-wadeeah current and other deposit accounts 6.1 632,774,804 728,328,241
Bilis payable 6.2 310,913,814 378,711,869
Mudaraba savings deposits 6.3 1,889,003,335 2,049,334,433
Mucdaraba term deposits 6.4 2,658,630,258 2,179,442,420
5,492,222 211 5,335,816,963
6.4 Alwadeeah current and other deposit accounts
Al-wadeeah current deposits 315,819,405 242,593,282
Alialah Udyog Current Account 39,372,632 69,205,801
Foreign currency deposils 196,807,598 348,742,716
Sundry depasits 6.1.1 80,675,269 67,786,442
632,774,804 728,328,241
6.1.1 Sundry deposifs
Margin Accounts - Lecal Currency 39,883,283 61,284,550
Margin Accounts - Foreign Gurrency 40,791,986 6,501,892
Sundry Deposit - .
80,675,268 57,786,442
6.2  Bills payable
Payment order - Inside Bangladesh 310,792,581 378,597,874

Demand draft payable - Inside Bangladesh 121,233 113,995
Unclaimad PO - Inside Bangladesh - -
Unclaimed DO/TT - inside Bangladesh -

6.3

6.4

6.5

Mudaraba savings deposits

Spacial Notice Deposit (SND)
Aifalah Salary Account (ASA)
Alfalah Rising Star (ARS}
Alfalah Premium Plus (APP)
Saving Deposits

Mudaraba Royal Profit deposits

Mudaraba term deposits

Mudaraba Term Deposit (MTDR)

Deposits concentration

Inter-bank deposits
Vostro Deposit
Customer and other deposits

6.5.1
6.5.2

75

378,711,869

310,913,814

579,158,688 1,021,954,227
3,882,183 2,069,322
6,849,775 7,368,956

180,406,075 279,925,886

679,108,039 580,267,302

140,498,665 157,748,740

1,889,903,335

2,658,630,258

2,049,334,433

2,179,442,420

2,668,630,258  _ 2,179,442420
5,492,222,211

5,335,816,963

1,058,125,525
127,009,782
4,307,086,904

1,016,841,079
66,891,581
4,251,984,303

5,492,222 211

5,335,816,963




Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
L Notes | Taka L Taka
6 Deposits and other accounts {Continued)
6.5 Deposits concentration {Continued)
6.51 Inter-bank deposits
Jamuna Bank Limited 23,694 23,801
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 450,589,475 -
AB Bank limited 14,675 15,810
Prime Bank Limited 14,759,601 14,801,977
Islami Bank Bangladgsh Limited 51,232 31,646,246
Shahjalal lslami Bank Limited 2,758,754 2,760,388
Ai-Arafah Islami Bank Limited 11,984 425,245,956
The City Bank Limited 2,744,547 2,427,081
Trust Bank Limited 585,451,443 540,011,925
Bank Asla Limited 1,719,420 8,597

1,058,126,525

1,016,941,079

6.5.2 Vostro Deposit
Bankislami Pakistan Limitad
Bank Affalah Ltel, Karachi (Conventional)

Bank Alfalah Ltd, Karachi {islamic)

6.6 Maturity grouping of deposits

Repayable On demand
Repayable within 1 manth

Over 1 month but within 6 months
Over 6 months but within 1 year
QOver 1 year but within 5 years
Over 5 years but within 10 years
10 years or more

56,543,597 10,891,608
11,204,375 24,799,693
59,261,810 31,200,280
127,009,782 66,891,581
305,294,854 297,692,119
291,865,484 282,398,364
1,909,202,790 1,609,493,883
555,687,934 452,919,043
2,429,568,149 2,693,313,654

5,492,222 211

5,335,816,963

As per Bank Company Act 1991, Section 35 and BB circular letter no. BRPD 10 dated 12 September 2018, if any
money or valuable asset (except deposits from Government, minor or litigation) is unclaimed for ten years of
above as of 31 December every year, a three months’ notice will be given to depositars concerned. Based on the
response from the concerned depositors by following three months, amount will be paid to them otherwise
unclaimed deposit will be deposited to Bangladesh Bank by 30 April 2021. The bank does not have any such
31 December 2022 (cut off basis)

deposit to be reported as 10 years and above unclaimed deposit amount as on
to Bangladesh Bank.

7 Cther liabilities

Provision for Investments 7.1 38,585,563 32,194,861
Provision for off-balance sheet exposures 7.2 9,255,757 13,824,722
Profit suspense and compensation suspense 7.3 - £9,606
Unearned Income on islamic Finance 47,866,350 54,678,255
Accrued expenses 825,924 579,728
Salaries & Allowances Payable 830,477 1,148,633
Prafit payable on deposit & borrowings 7.4 84,816,764 45,645,968
Withholding tax on profit on deposits 3,279,265 761,038
Withhotding tax payable 4,588,377 3,124,401
Withholding VAT payable 739,169 320,028
Excise duty payable 337,450 416,500
Advance commission on Letter of Guarantee (L/G) 17,082 208,312
Unclaimed ATM/POS 34,398 29,072
Lease liabiiities - -
Miscellaneous 199,254 228,798

188,175,828 153,230,722
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

74

7.2

7.3

7.3.1

74

2022 2021
Notes Taka 4\ Taka

Other liabilities (Continued})
Provision for investments
A. General Provision
Provisions held at the beginning of the year 31,749,541 30,001,987
Provision made during the year 6,836,022 1,747,554
Provision no longer required - -
Net of provision (reversed)/made during the year 6,836,022 1,747,654
Provisions held at the end of the year 38,585,663 31,749,541
B. Specific Provision
Provisions held at the beginning of the year 445,320 445,320
Profit on investment waiver during the year - -
Adjustment with prior year - -
Provision no longer required - -
Written off during the year 445,320 -
Recoveries of amounts previously written off "
Specific provision made during the year - -
Net Charge to Profit and Loss Account - -
Provisions held at the end of the year - 445,320
Tota} provision on invesiments 38,585,563 32,194,861
Provision for off-balance sheef exposures
Balance as at 1 January 13,824,722 10,165,182
Provision made during the year - 3,659,540

13,824,722 13,824,722
Adjustments made during the year (4,568,965} L.
Balance as at 31 December 9,255,767 13,824,722
Profit suspense and compensation suspense
Profit suspense account 7.3.1 - 69,606
Compensation suspense - -

- 69,608

Profit suspense account
Balance at the beginning of tha year 69,606 75,810
Amount transferrad to profit Suspense Account during the year - -
Amount recovered in Interest Suspsanse Account during the year - (6,204}
Arount written off during the year (69,606) -
Profit on investment walver duging the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - 69,606
Profit payable on deposit
Profit Payable on Borrowings 473,866 33,938
Savings Deposit 40,971,415 15,134,195
30 days mudaraba term deposit 1,103,996 97,534
90 days mudaraba term deposit 7,109,934 2,866,832
180 days mudaraba term deposit 3,701,732 2,107,770
365 days mudaraba term deposit 20,397,067 19,597,334
Broken days mudaraba term deposit 1,641,650 1,855,452
15 months mudaraba term deposit 2,007,321 1,287 412
7 months mudaraba term deposit 330,858 197,003
13 months mudaraba term deposit 3,031,775 1,802 567
2 years mudaraba term deposit 436,244 244,917
3 years mudaraba term deposit 520,808 221,014

81,516,764 45,645,968
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Nofes ‘ l 2022 2021
Taka Taka
8 Retained earnings
Baiance as at 1 January - -
Adjustment for loan provision - -
Net profit/(loss) for the year 211,821,731 115,311,373
211,821,731 115,311,373
Transferred to Bangladesh country office {211,821,731) (115,311,373
Balance as at 31 December - -
9 Letters of guarantees
a) Claims jodged with the Bank company not recagnized as loan - -
by Mongy for which the Bank is contingently flable in respect of
guarantees given favoring:
[Yractors or officers - -
Government 295,604,267 238,086,047
Banks and ather financial institutions - 46,858,650
Others 8,000,000 53,060,548
303,694,267 338,005,245
10 Irrevacable letters of credit
Usance 6,649,806 134,860,806
Sight 167,655,002 431,402,989
174,304,808 566,263,795
11 Income statement
Income:
Profit, discount and similar income 274,669,606 198,789,506
Dividend income - -
Cemmission, exchange and brokerage ' 14,484,770 13,834,707
Gains less losses arising from dealing in foreign currencies 134,801,639 45,226,530
Other operating income 5,644,478 4,232,174
430,600,493 262,082,817
Expenses:
Profit paid on deposits 176,306,843 54,818,981
Administrative expenses 25,648,983 30,563,716
Other operating expenses 3,851,770 3,447,825
Depreciation on banking assets 333,960 504,001
206,041,566 429,334,523
Income over expenditure 224,558,927 132,748,394
12 investment income
Share of profit from financing and discounting
Murahaha Financing 240,850,432 179,963,342
Profit on Diminishing Musharkah - 2,431,606
Profit on bill discounted 16,255 T 2,747127
Profit against EDF : 3,082,087 119,288
Murabaha incoms trust receipt 3,657,940 2,025,205
247,406,714 487,286,568

Profit on placement with banks
Profit on term placements 27,262,892 11,502,938

Profit on Savings Deposit with Banks

27,262,892 11,502,938
274,669,606 198,789,506
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Profit paid on deposits

Profit shared on deposits & borrowings
Mudaraba Royal Profit Deposit

Mudaraba Savings Deposit

Alfalah Salary Account (ASA}

Modaraba term deposit

Interest on lease liabiiities

Profit paid on Borrowings

ihcome from investment in sharesfsecurities

Mark-up on zero coupon bonds
Dividend income on preference share

Commission, exchange and brokerage

Fees, commission etc.
Exchange sarnings

Other operating income

Service charges recovered
Charges recovered

Cheque Book charges recoverad
Charges on documentary credit
Courier charges recovered
Other income

UPAS LC Profit Spread

Gain on disposal of fixed asset

Salaries and allowances

Salasies & Allowances

Housing allowance

Conveyance allowance

Other allowances

Festival bonus

Performance bonus

The Bank's centribution te provident fund
Car allowance

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, rates and taxes
Cieaning and maintenance
Electricity and Utilities

Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc.

Postage and couriers

Electronic mail and on-line connectivity
Telegram, fax, telex, SWIFT and internet charge
Telephene charges

2022 20214

Notes Taka Taka
5,185,951 7,707,778
61,800,854 26,660,728
78,927 22,008
107,397,877 60,064,648
359,224 330,062
1,384,010 33,759
176,306,843 94,818,981
14,484,770 13,834,707
134,801,638 45,226,530
148,286,409 £9,061,237
931,477 604,269
465,167 837,680
168,700 178,800
500,825 675,818
3,335,983 1,584,615
1,242,326 350,891
6,644,478 4,232,174
10,552,798 13,824,769
2,717,373 3,513,080
679,359 878,257
203,883 269,929
1,596,857 1,982,560
628,599 816,401
651,395 885,146
465,000 915,000
17,495,269 23,085,142
1,876,337 1,893,348
766,854 865,994
2,149,368 1,931,444
4,792,569 4,690,786
612,367 716,263
454,850 450,700
376,955 394,073
53,649 101,343
1,507,921 1,662,379
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20

21

241

22

23

24

25

26

Stationery, printing, advertisement etc.

Table stationaty
Books and periodicals
Printing stationery
Computer stationery
Publicity

Depreciation and repair to bank's assets

Dapreciation of bank’s assets
Repair & Maintenance of bank's assets

Repair & maintenance of bank's assets

Furniture, fixture and fiitings
Rented premises

Office equipment

Computer maintenance
Motor vehicles

Other expenses

Bank charges, brokerage and commission
Entertainment

Security charges

Traveling and conveyance

Car fuel

Other

Related parties

Current deposit account
Bank Alfatah, Karachi

Other related party fransactions

Notes 2022 2021 7
Taka Taka
314,851 201,473
494,874 320,288
63,994 61,820
873,719 583,590
10,804,099 12,533,928
21,1 879,515 541,819
11,683,614 13,075,747
130,750 37,100
420,463 217,777
328,302 286,942
379,515 541,819
124,600 2,930
599,522 299,009
1,995,290 1,878,910
147,719 99,141
168,075 156,292
816,564 811,543
3,861,770 3,447,825
70,466,185 55,999,973
70,466,185 55,998,973

The bank had ne related party iransactions which were required to be disclosed.

Number of employees

The number of employees engaged for the whole year o part thereof who recsived & total yearly remunesation of

BDT 38,000 ar abova were 12 (2021: 22).

Employee related fraud

There was no fraud occurredireported to 8
involvernant of the Bank's employees. The Ban

mitigate such risk if exist.

angladesh Bank during the yeat 2022 which may indicate the
k monitors its employeas' performance and established controls to
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